
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST ST, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Authorize contract with municipal advisor regarding Tax Incremental District #6 boundary 
expansion  


 
Committee 
Action: 


 
Finance Committee recommended 3-0 on 05/24/2022 


 
Fiscal Impact:   $16,500 
 
File Number: 


 
R-126-2022 


 
Date  6/14/2022   
044/26/24/02020


 


 


 
The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 
 


RECITALS: 


 WHEREAS, the Common Council approved Ordinance O-12-2022 on May 10, 2022 
regarding a general development plan for property located at the northeast corner of Williams 
Drive and Glacier Moraine Drive in Stoughton, WI; and 


 WHEREAS, the above property is adjacent to the existing borders of Tax Incremental 
District (TID) #6 – Business Park Expansion; and 


 WHEREAS, TID #6 is currently in a deficit status and owes the General Fund $140,399 as 
of December 31, 2021: and 


 WHEREAS, current Wisconsin Statutes allow for the boundary expansion of TIDs; and 


 WHEREAS, the expansion of TID #6 boundaries to include the above property is fiscally 
desirable in order to increase the assessed value of TID #6, which will in turn create additional 
revenues for TID #6, which will in turn allow TID #6 to recover from its deficit status; and 


 WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton has used municipal advisory firm Ehlers & Associates 
in the past for both debt issues and TID activity; and 


 WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton has received the attached proposed contract 
(Attachment A) with Ehlers & Associates for $16,500 in fees in relation to the boundary expansion 
for TID #6; and 


 WHEREAS, the fees are not currently included in the 2022 budget for TID #6 but are 
anticipated to be funded through additional property tax revenue in future years; 


 NOW THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the appropriate city official(s) are authorized 
to contract with Ehlers & Associates for $16,500 as per Attachment A; and, 


 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the 2022 budget shall be amended to include this 







increased expenditure amount. 


Fiscal note:  Budget amendments require 2/3 majority of members elected. 


 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       
  
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
  
                                             
Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 


 
Council Action:           Override  Vote       







____________________________________________________________________________________________


Documentation of Municipal Advisor Relationship 1
Ehlers & Associates, Inc.                                                                                                             May 12, 2022


May 12, 2022


Dave Ehlinger, Director of Finance/Comptroller
City of Stoughton, Wisconsin
381 E Main St
Stoughton, WI 53589


Re: Written Municipal Advisor Client Disclosure with the City of Stoughton (“Client”) for
2022 TID No. 6 Amendment (“Project” Pursuant to MSRB Rule G-42)


Dear Dave:


As a registered Municipal Advisor, we are required by Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board
(MSRB) Rules to provide you with certain written information and disclosures prior to, upon
or promptly, after the establishment of a municipal advisory relationship as defined in
Securities and Exchange Act Rule 15Ba1-1.  To establish our engagement as your Municipal
Advisor, we must inform you that:


When providing advice, we are required to act in a fiduciary capacity, which includes a1.
duty of loyalty and a duty of care.  This means we are required to act solely in your
best interest.
We have an obligation to fully and fairly disclose to you in writing all material actual or2.
potential conflicts of interest that might impair our ability to render unbiased and
competent advice to you.  We are providing these and other required disclosures in
Appendix A attached hereto.


As your Municipal Advisor, Ehlers shall provide this advice and service at such fees, as
described within Appendix B attached hereto.


This documentation and all appendices hereto shall be effective as of its date unless
otherwise terminated by either party upon 30 days written notice to the other party.


During the term of our municipal advisory relationship, this writing might be amended or
supplemented to reflect any material change or additions.


We look forward to working with you on this Project.


Sincerely,


Ehlers & Associates


David Ferris,CPA
Senior Municipal Advisor


_______________


1   This document is intended to satisfy the requirements of MSRB Rule G-42(b) and Rule G-42(c).







____________________________________________________________________________________________


Documentation of Municipal Advisor Relationship – Appendix A Page 1
Ehlers                                                                                                                                               May 12, 2022


Appendix A


DISCLOSURE OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST/OTHER REQUIRED
INFORMATION


Actual/Potential Material Conflicts of Interest
Ehlers has no known actual or potential material conflicts of interest that might
impair its ability either to render unbiased and competent advice or to fulfill its
fiduciary duty to Client.


Other Engagements or Relationships Impairing Ability to Provide Advice
Ehlers is not aware of any other engagement or relationship Ehlers has that might
impair Ehlers’ ability to either render unbiased and competent advice to or to fulfill
its fiduciary duty to Client.


Affiliated Entities
Ehlers offers related services through two affiliates of Ehlers, Bond Trust Service
Corporation (BTSC) and Ehlers Investment Partners (EIP).  BTSC provides paying
agent services while Ehlers Investment Partners (EIP) provides investment related
services and bidding agent service. Ehlers and these affiliates do not share fees.  If
either service is needed in conjunction with an Ehlers municipal advisory
engagement, Client will be asked whether or not they wish to retain either affiliate to
provide service. If BTSC or EIP are retained to provide service, a separate agreement
with that affiliate will be provided for Client’s consideration and approval.


Solicitors/Payments Made to Obtain/Retain Client Business
Ehlers does not use solicitors to secure municipal engagements; nor does it make
direct or indirect payments to obtain or retain Client business.


Payments from Third Parties
Ehlers does not receive any direct or indirect payments from third parties to enlist
Ehlers recommendation to the Client of its services, any municipal securities
transaction or any financial product.


Payments/Fee-splitting Arrangements
Ehlers does not share fees with any other parties and any provider of investments or
services to the Client.  However, within a joint proposal with other professional
service providers, Ehlers could be the contracting party or be a subcontractor to the
contracting party resulting in a fee splitting arrangement. In such cases, the fee due
Ehlers will be identified in a Municipal Advisor writing and no other fees will be paid
to Ehlers from any of the other participating professionals in the joint proposal.


Municipal Advisor Registration
Ehlers is registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and
Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (MSRB).







____________________________________________________________________________________________


Documentation of Municipal Advisor Relationship – Appendix A Page 2
Ehlers May 12, 2022


Material Legal or Disciplinary Events
Neither Ehlers nor any of its officers or municipal advisors have been involved in any
legal or disciplinary events reported on Form MA or MA-I nor are there any other
material legal or disciplinary events to be reported.  Ehlers’ application for permanent
registration as a Municipal Advisor with the (SEC) was granted on July 28, 2014 and
contained the information prescribed under Section 15B(a)(2) of the Securities and
Exchange Act of 1934 and rules thereunder. It did not list any information on legal or
disciplinary disclosures.


Client may access Ehlers’ most recent Form MA and each most recent Form MA-I by
searching the Securities and Exchange Commission’s EDGAR system (currently
available at http://www.sec.gov/edgar/searchedgar/companysearch.html) and
searching under either our Company Name (Ehlers & Associates, Inc.) or by using the
currently available “Fast Search” function and entering our CIK number
(0001604197).


Ehlers has not made any material changes to Form MA or Form MA-I since that date.


Conflicts Arising from Compensation Contingent on the Size or Closing of
Any Transaction
The forms of compensation for municipal advisors vary according to the nature of
the engagement and requirements of the client.  Compensation contingent on the
size of the transaction presents a conflict of interest because the advisor may have
an incentive to advise the client to increase the size of the securities issue for the
purpose of increasing the advisor’s compensation. Compensation contingent on the
closing of the transaction presents a conflict because the advisor may have an
incentive to recommend unnecessary financings or recommend financings that are
disadvantageous to the client.  If the transaction is to be delayed or fail to close, an
advisor may have an incentive to discourage a full consideration of such facts and
circumstances, or to discourage consideration of alternatives that may result in the
cancellation of the financing or other transaction.


Any form of compensation due a Municipal Advisor will likely present specific conflict
of interests with the Client.  If a Client is concerned about the conflict arising from
Municipal Advisor compensation contingent on size and/or closing of their
transaction, Ehlers is willing to discuss and provide another form of Municipal
Advisor compensation.  The Client must notify Ehlers in writing of this request within
10 days of receipt of this Municipal Advisor writing.


MSRB Contact Information
The website address of the MSRB is www.msrb.org. Posted on the MSRB website is a
municipal advisory client brochure that describes the protections that may be
provided by MSRB rules and how to file a complaint with the financial regulatory
authorities.



http://www.sec.gov/edgar/searchedgar/companysearch.html





____________________________________________________________________________________________


Documentation of Municipal Advisor Relationship – Appendix B Page 1
Ehlers May 12, 2022


Appendix B


Scope of Service
Client has requested that Ehlers & Associates assist Client with Territory and Project
Plan  Amendment  of  Tax  Increment  District  No.  6  (“Project”).  Ehlers  &  Associates
proposes and agrees to provide the following scope of services:


Phase I – Feasibility Analysis
The purpose of Phase I is to determine whether the Project is a statutorily and
economically feasible option to achieve the Client’s objectives. This phase
begins upon your authorization of this engagement and ends on completion
and delivery of a feasibility analysis report. As part of Phase I services, Ehlers &
Associates will:


Consult with appropriate Client officials to identify the Client’s objectives·


for the Project.


Provide feedback as to the appropriateness of using Tax Incremental·


Financing in the context of the “but for” test.


If the Project includes creation of or addition of territory to a district,·


identify preliminary boundaries and gather parcel data from Client.
Determine compliance with the following statutory requirements as
applicable:


Equalized Value test.o


Purpose test (industrial, mixed use, blighted area, in need ofo
rehabilitation or conservation, or environmental remediation).


Newly-platted residential land use test.o


Prepare feasibility analysis report.  The report will include the following·


information, as applicable:


Identification of the type or types of districts that may be created.o


A description of the type, maximum life, expenditure period ando
other features corresponding to the type of district proposed.


A summary of the development assumptions used with respect too
timing of construction and projected values.


Projections of tax increment revenue collections to include annualo
and cumulative present value calculations.


Qualification of the district as a donor or recipient of sharedo
increment, and projected impact of any allocations of shared
increment.


If debt financing is anticipated, a summary of the sizing, structure,o
and timing of proposed debt issues.







Documentation of Municipal Advisor Relationship – Appendix B Page 2
Ehlers May 12, 2022


A cash flow pro forma reflecting annual and cumulative district fundo
balances and projected year of closure.


A draft timetable for the Project.o


Identification of how the creation date may affect the district’so
valuation date, the base value, compliance with the equalized value
test, and the ability to capture current year construction values and
changes in economic value.


When warranted, evaluate, and compare options with respect too
boundaries, type of district, project costs and development levels.


Ehlers & Associates will provide guidance on district design withino
statutory limits to creatively achieve as many of the Client’s
objectives as possible and will provide liaison with State Department
of Revenue as needed in the technical evaluation of options.


Present the results of the feasibility analysis to the Client’s staff, Plan·


Commission, or governing body.


Phase II – Project Plan Development and Approval
If the Client elects to proceed following completion of the feasibility analysis,
the Project will move to Phase II. This phase includes preparation of the
Project Plan, and consideration by the Plan Commission1, governing body, and
the Joint Review Board. This phase begins after receiving notification from the
Client to proceed and ends after the Joint Review Board acts on the Project.
As part of Phase II services, Ehlers & Associates will:


Based on the goals and objectives identified in Phase I, prepare a draft·


Project Plan that includes all statutorily required components.


We will coordinate with your staff, engineer, planner or other designated·


party to obtain a map of the proposed boundaries of the district, a map
showing existing uses and conditions of real property within the district,
and a map showing proposed improvements and uses in the district.


Submit to the Client an electronic version of the draft Project Plan for initial·


review and comment.


Coordinate with Client staff to confirm dates and times for the meetings·


indicated within the table beginning on the following page. Ehlers &
Associates will ensure that selected dates meet all statutory timing
requirements and will provide documentation and notices as indicated.


1If Client has created a Redevelopment Authority or a Community Development Authority, that body may fulfill the
statutory requirements of the Plan Commission related to creation or amendment of the district.







Documentation of Municipal Advisor Relationship – Appendix B Page 3
Ehlers May 12, 2022


Meeting Ehlers  &  Associates
Responsibility Client Responsibility


Initial Joint
Review Board


Prepare Notice of Meeting and
transmit to Client’s designated paper.


Mail meeting notice, informational
materials, and draft Project Plan to
overlapping taxing jurisdictions.


Provide agenda language to Client.


Attend meeting to present draft
Project Plan.


Post or publish agenda and
provide notification as
required by the Wisconsin
Open Records Law.


Prepare meeting minutes.


Designate Client Joint Review
Board representative.


Identify and recommend
Public Joint Review Board
representative for
appointment.


Plan
Commission
Public
Hearing


Prepare Notice of Public Hearing and
transmit to Client’s designated paper.


Post or publish agenda and
provide notification as
required by the Wisconsin
Open Records Law.


Plan
Commission
Public
Hearing


For blighted area districts and in need
of rehabilitation or conservation
districts, provide a format for the
required individual property owner
notification letters.


Attend hearing to present draft
Project Plan.


Prepare and mail individual
property owner notices (only
for districts created as
blighted area, or in need of
rehabilitation or
conservation).


Prepare meeting minutes.


Plan
Commission


Provide agenda language to Client.


Attend meeting to present draft
Project Plan.


Provide approval resolution for Plan
Commission consideration.


Post or publish agenda and
provide notification as
required by the Wisconsin
Open Records Law.


Distribute Project Plan &
resolution to Plan
Commission members in
advance of meeting.


Prepare meeting minutes.


Governing
Body Action


Provide agenda language to Client.


Attend meeting to present draft
Project Plan.


Provide approval resolution for
governing body consideration.


Post or publish agenda and
provide notification as
required by the Wisconsin
Open Records Law.


Provide Project Plan &
resolution to governing body
members in advance of
meeting.


Prepare meeting minutes.







Documentation of Municipal Advisor Relationship – Appendix B Page 4
Ehlers May 12, 2022


Joint Review
Board Action


Mail meeting notice and copy of final
Project Plan to overlapping taxing
jurisdictions.


Prepare Notice of Meeting and
transmit to Client’s designated paper.


Provide agenda language to Client.


Attend meeting to present final
Project Plan.


Provide approval resolution for Joint
Review Board consideration.


Post or publish agenda and
provide notification as
required by the Wisconsin
Open Records Law.


Prepare meeting minutes.


Throughout the meeting process, provide drafts of the Project Plan and·


related documents in sufficient quantity for the Client’s staff, Plan
Commission, governing body and Joint Review Board members.


Provide advice and updated analysis on the impact of any changes made·


to the Project Plan throughout the approval process.


Phase III – State Submittal
This phase includes final review of all file documents, preparation of filing
forms, and submission of the base year or amendment packet to the
Department of Revenue.  This phase begins following approval of the district
by the Joint Review Board and ends with the submission of the base year or
amendment packet. As part of Phase III services, Ehlers & Associates will:


Coordinate with Client’s assessor and other staff as necessary to obtain·


parcel valuations, parcel data and other information needed for preparation
of the State forms that must be filed as part of the base year or
amendment packet.


Assemble and submit to the Department of Revenue the required base·


year or amendment packet to include a final Project Plan document
containing all required elements and information.


Provide the Client with an electronic copy of the final Project Plan (and up·


to 15 bound hard copies if desired).


Provide the municipal Clerk with a complete electronic and/or hard copy·


transcript of all materials as submitted to the Department of Revenue for
certification.


Act as a liaison between the Client and the Department of Revenue during·


the certification process in the event any questions or discrepancies arise.







Documentation of Municipal Advisor Relationship – Appendix B Page 5
Ehlers May 12, 2022


Compensation - Flat Fee Portion of Engagement
In  return  for  the  services  set  forth  in  the  “Scope  of  Service,”  Client  agrees  to
compensate Ehlers & Associates as follows:


Phase I $  6,000
Phase II $  8,000
Phase III $  2,500
Total $ 16,500


Phase I base fee includes up to five financial scenarios. Additional scenarios will·


be run as needed at a cost of $750/scenario.


In the event Client determines not to proceed with the Project once a Phase has·


been authorized, but prior to that Phase’s completion, the compensation due for
that Phase will be prorated to reflect the percentage of the work completed.


Compensation – Hourly Services Portion of Engagement
Ehlers & Associates will bill Client on an hourly basis for services requested by Client
in conjunction with the engagement that are not specifically identified in the Scope
of Service set forth in this letter. Examples would include:


Attendance at additional meetings beyond the four required for approval or·


amendment of the District (Organizational Joint Review Board, Plan Commission
(or CDA), Governing Body and Final Joint Review Board).


Review of development agreements related to the District’s Project Plan and·


participation in negotiations with developers.


Hourly services will be billed at a rate that is dependent upon the task/staff required
to meet Client request at no less than $125.00/hour and not to exceed $350.00/
hour.


Payment for Services
For  all  compensation  due  to  Ehlers  &  Associates,  we  will  invoice  Client  for  the
amount  due  at  the  completion  of  each  Phase.  Our  fees  include  our  normal  travel,
printing,  computer  services,  and  mail/delivery  charges.  The  invoice  is  due  and
payable upon receipt by the Client.







Documentation of Municipal Advisor Relationship – Appendix B Page 6
Ehlers May 12, 2022


Client Responsibility
The following expenses are not included in our Scope of Services, and are the
responsibility of Client to pay directly:


Services rendered by Client’s engineers, planners, surveyors, appraisers,·


assessors, attorneys, auditors, and others that may be called on by Client to
provide information related to completion of the Project.


Preparation of maps necessary for inclusion in the Project Plan.·


Preparation of maps necessary for inclusion in the base year or amendment·


packet.


Publication charge for the Notice of Public Hearing and Notices of Joint Review·


Board meetings.


Legal opinion advising that Project Plan contains all required elements.·


(Normally provided by municipal attorney).


Preparation of District metes & bounds description. (Needed in Phase III for·


creation of new districts, or amendments that add or subtract territory).


Department of Revenue filing fee and annual administrative fees. The current·


Department of Revenue fee structure is:


Current Wisconsin Department of Revenue Fee Schedules


Base Year Packet $1,000


Amendment Packet with Territory Addition
or Subtraction $1,000


Amendment Packet with Territory Addition
and Subtraction $2,000


Base Value Redetermination $1,000


Amendment Packet No Charge


Annual Administrative Fee $150





		09 R-126-2022 - Authorize contract with municipal advisor regarding TID #6  boundary expansion

		09a  Authorize contract with municipal advisor regarding TID #6  boundary expansion

		Stoughton _ City of _ WI _ Dane County_ProjectDisclosure_2022 TID No. 6 Amendment_05_12_2022_10_05_37.pdf








CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST ST, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Authorize the Stoughton Fire Department to apply for a Wisconsin Department of Natural 
Resources (WDNR) grant for wildland/brush gear for budget year 2023 


 
Committee 
Action: 


 
Finance Committee recommended 3-0 on 05/24/2022 


 
Fiscal Impact:   $14,450 expenditures, $7,225 grant revenue, net $7,225 (estimated) 
 
File Number: 


 
R-127-2022 


 
Date 6/14/2022   
044/26/24/02020


 


 


 
The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 
 


RECITALS: 


 WHEREAS, the Stoughton Fire Department has successfully submitted grants for budget 
years 2021 and 2022 to the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (WDNR) for personal 
protective equipment related to wildland and brush fires; and, 


 WHEREAS, the Stoughton Fire Department wishes to apply to the WDNR for budget year 
2023 for grant funding at 50% for the following items: 


(a) addition of a foam system to the 2020 brush truck ($1,100 estimated cost), 
(b) purchase of ten (10) boots applicable for wildland gear ($3,350 estimated 


cost),  
(c) replacement of skid unit for six wheel drive All-Terrain Vehicle (ATV) 


($10,000 estimated cost); and 


WHEREAS, the WDNR deadline for the grant application is July 1, 2022; and 


WHEREAS, the Stoughton Fire Department anticipates including the City of 
Stoughton’s 50% portion of total expenditures in their requested budget for 2023;  


NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Stoughton Fire Department is 
authorized to submit for a Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources grant for purchase of 
wildland and brush fire equipment; and 


 


 


 


 







BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City of Stoughton will comply with all federal 
and/or state rules for the grant program. 


 . 


 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       
  
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
  
                                             
Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 


 
Council Action:           Override  Vote       







   


Memorandum 


TO:     Tim Swadley, Mayor 


    Dave Ehlinger, Finance Director 


FROM:   Joshua Ripp, Fire Chief 


DATE:    May 18, 2022 


SUBJECT:   2022‐2023 Grant Request 


 


Good Day, I’m requesting permission to make a grant application for the 2023 Fiscal year with 


the Wisconsin DNR. This is an annual grant program that helps provide Wisconsin fire 


departments to be better equipped to wildland/brush fires. Stoughton Fire Department has 


been successful in receiving grants for the past 2 years (2021 and 2022). Most of this was 


adding wildland brush gear to our personal protective gear package for our firefighters. This 


gear is flame resistant, but much lighter and creates less stress on our firefighters. This is a 


50/50 matching grant (DNR provides 50% of the cost, Stoughton Fire Department provides 50% 


of the cost.  


I need to make my application by July 1, 2022. We would then receive the notification on 


receiving or being denied the grant application by October 1 (historically) with us needing to 


provide a document accepting or turning down the grant by October 15. If we don’t accept the 


grant at that point, we aren’t penalized (such as if the budget request wasn’t included in the 


budget at that point).  


I would do as I have in the past, and submit the 50% cost for Stoughton Fire Department to pay, 


as part of my capital budget request. My requests this year will be: 


Requests 


Est. $1,100 ‐ Addition of a Foam System to the 2020 Brush Truck: This wasn’t ordered as part 


of the initial skid unit. This will get it to match our other brush/wildland vehicles using Foam, 


which helps us extinguish, and make sure those fires are out.  







Est $3,350 – Purchase of 10 boots applicable for wildland gear: Footwear for wildland 


firefighting boots can be a different configuration. We will determine which boots we will go 


with later, but current pricing is looking to be putting us at $335 per pair, with us starting at 10 


pairs of boots.  


Est $10,000 – Replacement Skid unit for our 6‐wheel drive ATV: We had this in 2022’s budget, 


but weren’t able to get delivery of the unit in time to meet the June 15th deadline. We will re‐


apply (the recommendation from the DNR) for next year for the unit, including an increase in 


price due to higher costs. I will be requesting carryover of our capital money at budget 


discussions as well.  


I have included a number of documents that are comparable (or will be) in the grant paperwork 


for the 2023 WI Department of Natural Resources grant. Please contact me with any questions. 







FOREST FIRE PROTECTION (FFP) GRANT AWARD CHECKLIST 
 


20 September 2019 Page 1 of 2 
 


This checklist is provided to help you conduct your fire organization’s FFP project. Important dates are noted to keep 
your project on track. This checklist is not intended to replace the detailed procedural information found in the “FFP 
Grant Procedures” document. If you need a hard copy of information contained in this checklist, please contact the 
FFP Grant Manager. This document, as well as all documents referred to in the checklist, can be accessed at the 
Forest Fire Protection Grant Website:  http://dnr.wi.gov/aid/forestfireprotection.html 


DUE DONE Grant # FFP-21 _______________ 
Project Dates:  10/01/2020 – 4/15/2021 


GRANT AWARD ACCEPTANCE 


10/15/20 


 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 


Read the grant letter and agreement. 
 
Confirm the approved category award amount, total grant award amount, and note any 
ineligible item(s).  It is possible to receive a “partial” award if you requested funds for 
mapping. 
 
Carefully review the grant agreement before accepting this award to fully understand 
your responsibilities as the grantee. 
 
Accept or decline the grant award. Immediately inform the FFP grant manager, in writing, 
if you decline the grant award.  


 
 Read the “FFP Grant Procedures” document for grant administration information. This 


document is available on the FFP grant program website. 


 
 Sign both copies of the grant agreement. Return the DNR COPY to the FFP Grant 


Manager. 


 
 Complete the Payee Verification Form and, if necessary, a W-9.  


10/15/20  


Submit – DNR Copy of Grant Agreement, Payee Verification Form, and, if necessary, a W-9 
to the FFP Grant Manager: (*NOTE-new mailing address) 
 Mail:  Department of Natural Resources –  


            3911 Fish Hatchery Road, Fitchburg, WI 53711 
 Email:  DNRFFPGrantProgram@wisconsin.gov  
 Fax: (608) 275-3338 


 


 
Create and maintain a grant file for this FFP grant project.  Accounts, documents, and 
records related to this project must be retained for a period of three (3) years and made 
available upon inspection. 


**Once you sign and return these documents, proceed with your project** 
You will receive no further confirmation from the DNR. 



http://dnr.wi.gov/aid/forestfireprotection.html

file://central/cfdata/Grants/FFP-Forest%20Fire%20Protection/Award%20Packet/FY14/DNRFFPGrantProgram@wisconsin.gov





01 September 2020  Page 2 of 2 
 


USE OF GRANT FUNDS 
  


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 


Competitive Procurement 
Determine procurement method required for your project by reviewing grant agreement 
conditions: General Condition 8.e. “Bidding” and Special Conditions B.5.a – b. Another 
useful tool is the “Procurement Guide for Local Governments Receiving DNR Grants”.  A 
complete version of this guide can be found on the FFP grant program website.  
Secure quotes (if not previously done).  Catalog pages, internet pages, and documented 
telephone contacts are acceptable. 
Solicit bids, if applicable.   
Keep a copy of all quotes and/or bid information in the fire organization’s grant file for 
future inspection.  
 


ASAP  


Order your equipment from vendor of your choice.  If you are ordering from the DNR’s 
Forestry Equipment R& D Center at Tomahawk (formerly the LeMay Forestry Center),  
Place your order as soon as possible to avoid backorders. 
 Website:  DNR Forestry Center FFP Grant Eligible Catalog 


ASAP  


 


Arrange payment and delivery of all products and services on or before the strictly 
enforced project end date of 4/15/21. There will be no extensions due to the Covid-19 
Pandemic this year. It is your responsibility to place your orders early. 
 


**FFP Grant Projects END on APRIL 15, 2021** 
REIMBURSEMENT MATERIALS MUST BE POSTMARKED BY APRIL 15, 2021 - ABSOLUTELY NO EXTENSIONS 


All purchases must be received; all services must be rendered on or before this date. Any costs incurred after 
this date will not be eligible for reimbursement. 


REIMBURSEMENT REQUESTS 


Upon FFP 
project 


completion 
BEFORE  
4/15/21 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Complete, sign, and date: 
Form 4300-120 (FFP Grant Program Reimbursement Request and Claim Worksheet): 
A fillable, printable reimbursement form is available on the FFP Grant website. 
Be sure to include check numbers and dates on this form. 
Attach: 
Proof of purchase. For each purchase, a detailed invoice must be submitted. Quotes and 
estimates are not acceptable. 
Proof of payment (only if personal credit cards/checks are used). If additional payment 
documentation is needed, you will be contacted. 


On or 
before 


4/15/21 
 


Submit reimbursement request to the FFP Grant Manager: 
 Mail:   Mail:  Department of Natural Resources –  


            3911 Fish Hatchery Road, Fitchburg, WI 53711 
 Email:  DNRFFPGrantProgram@wisconsin.gov  
 Fax:  (608) 275-3338 


 
 Keep a copy of the reimbursement forms, purchase, and payment documentation in your 


fire organization’s grant file to produce upon inspection. 
PROJECT COMPLETION/CHECK RECEIPT 


  Participate in an on-site field check conducted by the local DNR Forester/Ranger  
CONTACT FOR QUESTIONS 


Sandy Chancellor, FFP Grant Manager  
Department of Natural Resources 


3911 Fish Hatchery Road Fitchburg, WI 53711 
Phone:  608-720-0122       


Fax:  608-275-3338 
E-mail: sandra.chancellor@wisconsin.gov 



https://dnr.wisconsin.gov/sites/default/files/topic/ForestFire/ffpCatalog.pdf

file://central/cfdata/Grants/FFP-Forest%20Fire%20Protection/Award%20Packet/FY14/DNRFFPGrantProgram@wisconsin.gov%20

mailto:sandra.chancellor@wisconsin.gov





01 September 2020  Page 3 of 2 
 


 







FOREST FIRE PROTECTION (FFP) GRANT PROGRAM 
GRANT PROCEDURES  


1 


GRANT REQUEST APPROVAL & GRANT AWARD ACCEPTANCE 


 The Department of Natural Resources (DNR) approved the portion of the fire organization’s grant request as listed in
the grant agreement.


 Thoroughly read the grant award letter and agreement to fully understand your responsibilities as the grantee.
 Pay particular attention to the “Grant Project Detail by Category” section on page 1 of the grant agreement.


 Do not assume you received everything requested in your original application. This page of the grant
agreement defines:


▫ the individual category award amount approved
▫ the total grant award amount
▫ any item(s) declared ineligible


 It is also possible that a partial award is being offered based on the number of eligible applicants and funding
availability.


By October 15th, the authorized representative for the grantee must sign and return all required documents listed below.
If this deadline is not met, your organization risks having the offer of grant funding rescinded.  


 DNR copy of the grant agreement. Sign both copies of the grant agreement and return the DNR copy. The
grantee copy of the grant agreement is for your file.


 W-9 Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN) Verification Form
This form is included in your award packet and must be completed to receive payment. The DNR is transitioning
to a new financial software system; as such, a W-9 form is required for all grantees. Please follow the
instructions for completion.


 DUNS #
Follow the instructions on the form to enter a DUNS # for your organization or obtain one if you do not already
have a DUNS #.


Submit the required documents to the FFP Grant Manager by October 15th:
 Email (received by midnight):  DNRFFPGrantProgram@wi.gov
 Fax (received by midnight):  (608) 275-3338
 Mail (postmarked):  Department of Natural Resources – 3911 Fish Hatchery Road Fitchburg, WI 


53711


PROCEED WITH YOUR PROJECT 


Once you sign the grant agreement and submit the required materials to the DNR, there will be no further confirmation 
from the DNR. 


DECLINING THE GRANT AWARD OFFER 


Please provide the FFP Grant Manager written notification of your decision to decline the grant award offer by October
15th. There will be no penalty to your fire organization if the decision is made before this deadline. 



mailto:DNRFFPGrantProgram@wi.gov





FOREST FIRE PROTECTION (FFP) GRANT PROGRAM 
GRANT PROCEDURES  


2 


USE OF GRANT FUNDS 


1. Read the grant agreement carefully, especially noting the “Grant Project Detail by Category” section on page 1 of
the grant agreement. This is important because it defines the individual category award amount approved, the total
grant award amount, and any item(s) that were declared ineligible. If the grant agreement lists ineligible items, the
FFP grant program will not reimburse those items.


2. After returning the required documents to the DNR, place orders with successful vendors following the competitive
procurement process outlined below. Arrange for payment and delivery on or before April 15th. The grant period
end date of April 15th will be strictly enforced. Begin your project immediately, and order early to avoid backorders.
No extensions will be granted for backorders.


3. Competitive Procurement is essential. As a grantee, it is imperative you comply with state and federal law. FFP
Grant Agreement General Condition A.8.e. and Special Conditions B.5.a.–d. address this issue. Procurement
guidelines can be complex. If you have questions regarding the necessity for bids or how to conduct the bidding
process, please consult your organization’s or municipality’s local attorney. A useful tool in determining the bidding
method required for your project is the DNR’s “Procurement Guide for Local Governments Receiving DNR Grants”.


Quotations (catalog pages, internet pages, and documented telephone contacts are acceptable) and bids should be
kept as part of the grant file. You may be asked to provide bid documentation prior to reimbursement authorization.
For fire organizations ordering from the DNR’s Forestry Equipment R&D Center, it is not necessary to follow the
bidding requirements since the State has already completed the bidding.


If you plan to order equipment from the DNR’s Forestry Equipment R&D Center in Tomahawk, Wisconsin, place your
order as soon as possible to avoid backorders. As noted previously, it is not necessary to follow competitive
procurement requirements when ordering through this facility. If you place an order, make sure you indicate you
received an FFP grant so an invoice can be processed in a timely manner. To expedite your order, email or fax your
request.


 Website:  http://dnr.wi.gov/topic/ForestFire/catalog.html
 Email:  DNRFRstockroom@wi.gov
 Phone:  (715) 453-1257
 Fax:  (715) 453-5998


4. The grantee is responsible for payment of the full invoice amount to the vendor from its own (fire organization)
account; this may be separate from or part of a municipal account. Payments for grant purchases may be made from
the grantee’s account as follows:


 Written check
 Cashier’s check or money order
 Credit card, debit card, or online banking


Note:  Use of a personal credit card or check from a fire department member’s account is discouraged; however, we 
recognize that there are situations that warrant its use. This payment method will require additional “proof of 
payment” documentation as outlined in the “Reimbursement Process” section.  


CAUTION:  Items for which payment has been or will be received from another federal or state financial assistance 
program are not eligible for reimbursement. 


DEADLINE FOR FFP PROJECT COMPLETION IS APRIL 15th – NO EXTENSIONS. 
The project end date of April 15th will be strictly enforced. 



http://dnr.wi.gov/topic/ForestFire/catalog.html

mailto:DNRFRstockroom@wi.gov





FOREST FIRE PROTECTION (FFP) GRANT PROGRAM 
GRANT PROCEDURES  


3 


REIMBURSEMENT PROCESS 


The DNR will process a single reimbursement check. The reimbursement request must be complete when it is submitted 
to the DNR. The DNR reimburses the grantee for fifty percent (50%) of the eligible project costs up to the maximum 
amount of the grant award as stated in the grant agreement. To be eligible for reimbursement: all eligible items must be 
purchased and received, and all services must be rendered within the grant period as stated in the grant agreement. To 
request reimbursement, submit the following to the FFP Grant Manager by April 15th: 


 Completed and signed Forest Fire Protection (FFP) Grant Program Reimbursement Request (Form 4300-120).
List the check date, check number, vendor(s), item(s) purchased, amount, and the total expenditure for the
grant project. By signing, you indicate that all bills are paid and all items have been received within the grant
period. Only record actual expenditures in the “Expenditures” column in the appropriate categories. The
reimbursement request form is available at: http://dnr.wi.gov/aid/forestfireprotection.html


 Proof of purchase. For each purchase, a detailed invoice must be submitted. Quotes and estimates are not
acceptable.


Note: Proof of payment no longer needs to be submitted with the reimbursement request, with the exception
noted below. All payment documentation must be kept in the fire orqanization’s grant file to be produced upon
inspection. If the FFP grant manager determines payment documentation is needed, you will be contacted
directly.


 EXCEPTION:  If a purchase is made with a personal credit card or check from a fire department
member’s account, it is necessary to submit a copy of the fire organization check showing payment to
that fire department member.


Submit FFP Reimbursement Requests to the FFP Grant Manager by April 15th: 
 Email (received by midnight):  DNRFFPGrantProgram@wi.gov
 Fax (received by midnight):  (608) 275-3338
 Mail (postmarked):  Department of Natural Resources – 3911 Fish Hatchery Road Fitchburg, WI


53711
After DNR staff completes its review of the reimbursement request and authorizes payment for all eligible costs, a check 
will be sent based on the information supplied on the Payee Verification Form or W-9.  


AFTER CHECK ARRIVAL 


 Participate in an on-site field check conducted by your local DNR Forester/Ranger. This is an important appointment
and serves as an opportunity for you and DNR staff to review the grant award process and project.


 Affix inventory sticker, if provided by the local DNR Forester/Ranger, during the on-site field check.
 Assist in the planning of, and participate in, local public relations opportunities.
 Review information on recordkeeping, inventory, and disposal requirements contained in the grant agreement:


General Condition A.8.f. and Special Conditions B.6., B.7., and B.8. If your organization received federal funds, grant
agreement Conditions Applicable to Recipients of Federal Funds C.2. applies.


CONTACT FOR QUESTIONS 


Sandy Chancellor, FFP Grant Manager 
Phone: 608-720-0122


Email: sandra.chancellor@wisconsin.gov



http://dnr.wi.gov/files/PDF/forms/4300/4300-120.pdf

http://dnr.wi.gov/aid/forestfireprotection.html

mailto:DNRFFPGrantProgram@wi.gov

mailto:sandra.chancellor@wisconsin.gov





FOREST FIRE PROTECTION (FFP) GRANT
This list is not all-inclusive. It is meant to give an idea of item eligibility for reimbursement based on current interpretation of state statutes and administrative rules for the Forest Fire Protection (FFP)
Grant Program as administered by the Department of Natural Resources. Any eligibility questions should be directed to the grant program manager listed on the last page of this document.


Eligible Ineligible
NFPA 1977 Standard     *(Must bear NFPA 1977 label)* bunker pants and coats and other standard issue clothing for fighting structural fires
●  brush pants, maximum $350 ea. ($175 grant funds)    clothing/PPE for HazMat/EMT/Search & Rescue ops
●  jumpsuits/coveralls maximum $700 ea. ($350 grant funds)           first aid kits
●  brush jackets, maximum $350 ea. ($175 grant funds) flashlights: personal
●  hard hats/helmets, maximum $100 ea. ($50 grant funds) gloves: extrication, structural, non-leather
●  wildland gloves, $50 maximum ($25 grant funds) heat sensors/strips
●  boots, maximum $200 per pair ($100 grant funds) 10 pair maximum helmets and ATV/UTV helmets 
     (Note, boots can cost more than $200, but no more than $200 will be considered grant eligible) items not specifically approved by the NFPA (e.g. bandanas and respirators)
chainsaw chaps Personnel Accountability System-passport, tag or card systems
ear protection (plugs) PASS Alarms
fire shelters rehab misters
Firefighter Cleaning Wipes $200 max ($100 grant funds) Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus (SCBA)
goggles/safety glasses & cases Scene Lighting
helmet flashlights/headlamps, maximum $100 ea. ($50 grant funds) vests: high visibility, ICS
hot shields and masks/wildland-approved dust mask and filters, maximum $100 ea. ($50 grant funds)
Nomex hoods and shrouds, maximum $100 ea. ($50 grant funds)
personal compasses
personal safety strobes (strobe only, incapable of producing steady beam of light)$20 max ea/$10 grant funds
radio chest packs
web belts for fire shelters


Eligible Ineligible
DVDs - wildland fire training electronic equipment: cameras, computers, DVD players, home theater systems, printers
Wildland Fire Chainsaw Training $2000 max ($1000 grant funds)  (including camera/photo printers), projectors/screens, TV's, VCR's
forest fire and ICS certified training and tuition LP gas simulator training
practice fire shelter prescribed burn training


speaker fees
structural/non-wildland fire training


Eligible Ineligible
brochures: forest fire prevention, wildland-urban interfaces fire safety trailer with WUI considerations (county/area associations only)
firewise materials smoke detectors
handouts for wildland fire structural fire prevention materials
posters: wildland fire themed 
signs: magnetic fire danger signs for vehicles
Smokey Bear costume
Smokey: fire danger signs, take Smokey home school project
videos: forest fire prevention, wildland-urban interfaces


TRAINING


PERSONAL PROTECTIVE EQUIPMENT (PPE)


PREVENTION & WILDLAND URBAN INTERFACE


 07 April 2022 Page 1 of 4







Eligible Ineligible
back can/backpack pump axes: fire, pick
belt weather kit/handheld weather instrument backpack sprayers (like those used for herbicide application)
bolt cutters binoculars
chainsaw brackets canteens
chainsaw: chainsaw GREATER than 60 cc diplacement or 4.5 hp
●LESS than 60cc displacement or LESS than 4.5 engine hp (wildland fire use only) chainsaw: sharpening kit, replacement chains
●Electric chainsaw, plus two batteries per saw drones
DOT safety cans (Must be 5 gallon or less and DOT labeled) dry hydrants: repair or maintenance of dry hydrants already in existence
● decals to label safety cans -fuel type equipment for HazMat/EMT/Search & Rescue operations (includes skid unit EMS seating)
drip torch: hand-held equipment for structural fire fighting large, trailer-type pumps
dry hydrant components and supplies for NEW installations only ●  compressed air foam systems permanently mounted on structural fire engines
equipment for fire suppression used to outfit ATV, RTV, UTV ●  high volume pumps primarily used for structural fires
●  NOT including: light bars, lettering, paint, windshield, roof, etc. ●  high pressure fire suppression pumping systems or high pressure hoses
foam and gels: application equipment and proportioners for use with USDA-approved Class A ●  large, trailer-type pumps
foam and gels: USDA-approved Class A: no more than 50 gallons ●  thermal imaging devices/cameras
● Approved Class A Foams List fire line tape
foam systems permanently mounted on brush truck flashlights: boxlight
foam: portable delivery equipment for Class A foam flatbed assembly that attaches to vehicles/UTV/ATV/RTV
forestry flagging floodlights
fusees foam delivery system that is non-USDA approved
hose reels foam: Class B, not USDA-approved Class A
hoses & appliances: Diameter of 1" or LESS (No high pressure hoses) gear bags
leaf blower/mister generators
nozzles:  Diameter of 1" or LESS, maximum $200 per nozzle (grant funds $100) hose tester or hose washer
Pumps: hoses/nozzles/appliances: Diameter GREATER than 1"
           ● 21 hp or lower hydrant wrench
           ● pressure not capable of exceeding 300 psi hydrants for city water
           ●primary use must be initial-attack suppression Jerry Cans 
slip-on/skid pumping units for vehicles (NO part of any high pressure skid-unit will be funded) ladders
● UTV/RTV/ATV slip-on pumping unit, maximum $8000 ($4000 grant funds) laser thermometer/heat sensor guns 
● Brush Truck slip-on pumping unit, maximum $14,000 ($7,000 grant funds) laundry equipment
      ●Slip-on unit pumps requirements below: maintenance or replacement equipment (e.g. replacement winch cables, replacement chainsaw chains)
           ● 21 hp or lower oxygen
           ● pressure not capable of exceeding 300 psi portable compressed air foam systems (CAFS)
           ●primary use must be initial-attack suppression/NO SEATS ON SLIP ON UNIT resource locator tracking system
sprinkler kits saw: ventilation (and parts, i.e. carbide tipped chains, depth gauge, power head), rescue
suction hoses to match pump scope for spotting
tools: handtools used in wildland fire suppression tanks: portable
tow straps tool hauling trailer
wheel chocks tracks: ATV, RTV, UTV


winches traffic signage/cones


trailers for hauling ATV, RTV, UTV
underground water tank
water thief


TOOLS/EQUIPMENT


07 April 2022 Page 2 of 4



https://www.fs.fed.us/rm/fire/wfcs/documents/2020-0705%20qpl_foam.pdf





Eligible Ineligible
cell phone boosters for fire department-owned vehicles backup power systems for radio tower sites (including solar panels)
portable radio charger battery replacements for radios and pagers
lapel microphones, Maximum $75 ea. ($37.50 grant funds) existing repeater tower relocation
radio headsets - max $300 ($150 grant funds) - must be connected to portable radio existing tower maintenance
radios: mobile, portable (including initial battery, warranty, installation and programming) fax machines/copiers/scanners
●  LIMITS: 2 mobile, 2 portable- max $2500 per radio ($1250 grant funds) maintenance or replacement equipment (e.g. batteries)
●  Must include county fire and appropriate mutual aid frequencies including Fireground Blue mobile data terminals
●  Must meet P25 conventional standard mobile phones (and related charges)
radio reprogramming for DNR digital communication and monitoring: pager reprogramming
●fire department radios, software, cable for radio reprogramming paging system with encoder/decoder
● MAX $1,000 (grant funds $500) repeaters: base station, vehicle
pagers and accessories max $400 ($200 grant funds) 5 pagers maximum siren system for community emergency warning


Eligible Ineligible
Installation costs: excavation, site preparation, engine pad, signage dredging costs
● http://dnr.wi.gov/topic/waterways/construction/dry_hydrants.html easement legal fees
● NOTE: If awarded a grant, reimbursement costs for dry hydrant installation will only electric pump-driven dry hydrant
be authorized when appropriate documentation is submitted with the reimbursement irrigation wells
request (exemption letter, permit approval, landowner letter) roads for dry hydrant access


underground water tanks
wells


Eligible Ineligible
GPS and installation GPS units with 2 way radios, cameras or other enhancements
maps: zone, high hazards wildland areas, water resources numbering systems
plat books other mapping equipment


PDAs
software, computers, tablets


Eligible Ineligible
ATV, RTV, UTV: primary use is wildland fire suppression light bars or sirens on initial-attack brush trucks or UTVs
Truck chassis tenders (tankers) not equipped for off-road
tenders (tankers) w/tank capacity ≤ 1,000 gallons if equipped w/mounted pumps for off-road tenders (tankers) w/tank capacity GREATER than 1,000 gallons
trucks: standard all-wheel drive, 1/2 to 5-ton capacity equipped to fight wildland fires tires, vehicle maintenance, repair for existing trucks
vehicle wildland fire fighting preparations made immediately after acquisition tracks: ATV, RTV, UTV
● paint trailers: rehab, hauling ATV, RTV or UTV
● identification letters/numbers trucks: standard w/OUT all-wheel drive (not off-road)
● truck brush guards
● truck bumpers
● truck compartments


OFF-ROAD VEHICLES


COMMUNICATION EQUIPMENT


DRY HYDRANT INSTALLATION


MAPPING


07 April 2022 Page 3 of 4







Eligible Ineligible
expenses: donations/in-kind labor
● incurred during the grant project period expenses:
● paid from Grantee or Taxpayer ID # (TIN) account ● incurred before or after the grant project period
quotes/bids publication notices ● incurred under a contract that creates a real or apparent conflict of interest
shipping/freight ● receive payment under other federal/state financial assistances programs


● paid from an account different from that of the Grantee or Taxpayer ID # (TIN) account
sales tax


FFP Grant Manager Cooperative Forest Fire Specialist
Sandy Chancellor Ron Schneider
Phone:  (608) 720-0122 Phone:  (608) 438-6528
Email:  sandra.chancellor@wisconsin.gov Email: Ron.Schneider@wisconsin.gov


OTHER EXPENSES


07 April 2022 Page 4 of 4







 


 


 


 


 


PROCUREMENT GUIDE 


FOR 


LOCAL GOVERNMENTS 


RECEIVING GRANTS 


(STATE OR FEDERAL) 


FROM THE 


WISCONSIN DEPARTMENT OF 


NATURAL RESOURCES 


 


 


 


 


Issued by: 


Bureau of Community Financial Assistance 


Wisconsin Dept of Natural Resources 


101 So. Webster Street 


Madison, WI  53703 


Contact Number:  608-266-7555 


 


 


(Last Revised:  February 2016 - DNR Bureau of Legal Services)







---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Procurement Guide for Local Governments Receiving Grants from the       Page 2 
Wisconsin Dept. of Natural Resources Revised February 2016 


 


INTRODUCTION 


 
DISCLAIMER.  This document sets out bidding requirements that local units of government must 


meet to ensure that the Department of Natural Resources (DNR) can process grant reimbursement 


requests.  The document is not a comprehensive review of all bidding law requirements.  Consult your 


attorney with detailed questions about compliance with bidding laws. 
 


DNR personnel are not qualified or authorized to provide legal advice to local units of government 


concerning bidding laws. 
 


What follows is an explanation of what the DNR will be looking for prior to issuing reimbursements to 


grantees.  Municipalities cannot generalize this guidance to other situations.  Bidding laws are 


complicated, with different requirements for cities, towns, villages, and counties.  Because of this 


complexity, local units of government are urged to work with their attorneys to ensure compliance 


with all bidding laws. 
 


BACKGROUND.  Since moneys collected from taxpayers are typically used to underwrite grant and 


loan programs, efforts to contain project costs are in the public’s interest.  There are several cost-


containment strategies; the most common is known as “competitive bidding”. 
 


In general, state law requires local units of government to competitively bid for “public construction” 


when the estimated cost exceeds $25,000
1
.  If the estimated cost is between $5,000 and $25,000


1
, 


Wisconsin Statutes require that each municipality issue a Class 1 notice concerning the proposed 


project before a contract is executed.  In addition to state law, some municipal ordinances may have 


competitive bidding requirements.   
 


Recipients of DNR grants and loans must comply with applicable state bidding and contracting 


requirements; see Part 1 below.  In addition, grants or loans funded with Federal money require 


specific bidding procedures; see Part 2 below.  The DNR strongly recommends grant recipients 


consult with their attorneys to ensure compliance with all bidding requirements and 


procedures. 
 


NOTE: Failure to comply with bidding requirements may result in your reimbursement 


being withheld. 
 


CHANGES TO PREVAILING WAGE DETERMINATIONS.  2015 Wis. Act 55 repealed the 


requirement that local governments obtain a Prevailing Wage Rate Determination from the Department of 


Workforce Development before making a contract or soliciting bids for public works projects with cost 


estimates greater than $25,000, effective on January 1, 2017.  See s. DWD 290.08, Wis. Admin. Code, for 


information about remaining prevailing wage rate determinations.  This means that prevailing wage rate 


determinations will be needed for any project begun before January 1, 2017.  
 


An application for wage rate determination is available on the DWD website 


(http://dwd.wisconsin.gov/er/prevailing_wage_rate/publication_erd_8731_p.htm ) and may be printed or 


filed electronically.  The DWD has 30 days from the date of application receipt to issue a determination.  


The prevailing wage “white sheet“ provided by DWD should be included with the other bid documents 


when requesting bids for your project. 


                                                 
1
 This requirement varies depending on the specific local unit of government.  The DNR strongly suggests that local 


units of government work with their attorney to ensure that the applicable state laws are complied with and satisfied. 



http://dwd.wisconsin.gov/er/prevailing_wage_rate/publication_erd_8731_p.htm





---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Procurement Guide for Local Governments Receiving Grants from the       Page 3 
Wisconsin Dept. of Natural Resources Revised February 2016 


 


 


PART 1 


 
REQUIREMENTS WHEN GRANTS ARE FROM STATE SOURCES 


 
DETERMINE BIDDING METHOD 
 
When bidding for supplies, services, or construction, we suggest the methods listed in the 


following table to determine the appropriate bidding method.  Construction projects cannot be 


divided into smaller contracts to avoid bidding.  While some exceptions exist (see pp. 8-10), it 


is good business practice to obtain price quotes whenever possible.  Grant recipients should 


consult with their attorneys when determining if the exceptions apply to your situation. 


 


RECOMMENDED BIDDING METHODS 
 


VILLAGES: 


Contracts less than 


$5,000
2
 


Although not mandated by law, it is highly 


recommended that the grant applicant obtain quotes 


from several sources (preferably three vendors) to 


obtain the best price.  Grant applicants should 


telephone vendors and ask them to submit a written 


estimate/quote for goods or services.  Additionally, 


grant applicants should maintain a file with the 


names of vendors contacted, the written quotes 


obtained, and a written explanation of the vendor 


selected (if not low bidder). 
 


Contracts greater than 


$5,000 but less than 


$25,000 


If the estimated cost of any public construction 


exceeds $5,000, but is not greater than $25,000, the 


village board shall give a Class 1 notice, under ch. 


985, of the proposed construction before the contract 


for the construction is executed. (See Wis. Stat. § 


62.15(1).) 
 


Contracts greater than 


$25,000 


All contracts for public construction, in any such 


village, exceeding $25,000, shall be let by the village 


board to the lowest responsible bidder in accordance 


with s. 66.0901 insofar as said section may be 


applicable. (See Wis. Stat. § 62.15(1).) 
 


                                                 
2
 Although not mandated by statute or administrative code, it is strongly recommended that this action be taken by 


grant applicants to remain consistent with Wis. Adm. Code ADM 8.01, Wis. Stat. §§ 16.75(1)(c) and 16.75(2m)(c). 







---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Procurement Guide for Local Governments Receiving Grants from the       Page 4 
Wisconsin Dept. of Natural Resources Revised February 2016 


 


RECOMMENDED BIDDING METHODS 


CITIES: 


Contracts less than 


$5,000
2
 


Although not mandated by law, it is highly 


recommended that the grant applicant obtain quotes 


from several sources (preferably three vendors) to 


obtain the best price.  Grant applicants should 


telephone vendors and ask them to submit a written 


estimate/quote for goods or services.  Additionally, 


grant applicants should maintain a file with the 


names of vendors contacted, the written quotes 


obtained, and a written explanation of the vendor 


selected (if not low bidder). 
 


Contracts greater than 


$5,000 but less than 


$25,000
3
 


If the estimated cost of any public construction 


exceeds $5,000 but is not greater than $25,000, the 


board of public works shall give a Class 1 notice, 


under ch. 985, of the proposed construction before 


the contract for the construction is executed. (See 


Wis. Stat. § 62.15(1).) 
 


Contracts greater than 


$25,000
3
 


All public construction, the estimated cost of which 


exceeds $25,000, shall be let by contract to the lowest 


responsible bidder; all other public construction shall 


be let as the council may direct. (See Wis. Stat. 


§ 62.15(1).) 
  


                                                 
3
 The council may also, by a vote of three−fourths of all the members−elect, provide by ordinance that any class of 


public construction or any part thereof may be done directly by the city without submitting the same for bids. 







---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Procurement Guide for Local Governments Receiving Grants from the       Page 5 
Wisconsin Dept. of Natural Resources Revised February 2016 


 


RECOMMENDED BIDDING METHODS 


TOWNS: 


Contracts less than 


$5,000
2
 


Although not mandated by law, it is highly 


recommended that the grant applicant obtain quotes 


from several sources (preferably three vendors) to 


obtain the best price.  Grant applicants should 


telephone vendors and ask them to submit a written 


estimate/quote for goods or services.  Additionally, 


grant applicants should maintain a file with the 


names of vendors contacted, the written quotes 


obtained, and a written explanation of the vendor 


selected (if not low bidder). 
 


Contracts greater than 


$5,000 but less than 


$25,000 


No town may enter into a public contract with an 


estimated cost of more than $5,000 but not more than 


$25,000 unless the town board, or a town official or 


employee designated by the town board, gives a 


Class 1 notice under ch. 985 before execution of that 


public contract. (See Wis. Stat. § 60.47(2)(a).) 
 


Contracts greater than 


$25,000 


No town may enter into a public contract with a value 


of more than $25,000 unless the town board, or a 


town official or employee designated by the town 


board, advertises for proposals to perform the terms 


of the public contract by publishing a Class 2 notice 


under ch. 985. The town board may provide for 


additional means of advertising for bids. (See 


Wis. Stat. § 60.47(2)(b).) 


 


The town board shall let a public contract for which 


advertising for proposals is required under the above 


section to the lowest responsible bidder.
4
 (See 


Wis. Stat. § 60.47(3).) 
 


                                                 
4
 “Responsible bidder” means a person who, in the judgment of the town board, is financially responsible and has 


the capacity and competence to faithfully and responsibly comply with the terms of the public contract. 







---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Procurement Guide for Local Governments Receiving Grants from the       Page 6 
Wisconsin Dept. of Natural Resources Revised February 2016 


 


RECOMMENDED BIDDING METHODS 


COUNTIES: 


Contracts less than 


$5,000
2
 


Although not mandated by law, it is recommended 


that the grant applicant obtain quotes from several 


sources (preferably three vendors) to obtain the best 


price.  Grant applicants should telephone vendors and 


ask them to submit a written estimate/quote for goods 


or services.  Additionally, grant applicants should 


maintain a file with the names of vendors contacted, 


the written quotes obtained, and a written explanation 


of the vendor selected (if not low bidder). 
 


Contracts greater than 


$5,000 but less than 


$25,000
5
 


If the estimated cost of any public work is between 


$5,000 and $25,000, the board shall give a Class 1 


notice under ch. 985 before it contracts for the work 


or shall contract with a person qualified as a bidder 


under s. 66.0901. (See Wis. Stat. § 59.52(29)(a).) 
 


Contracts greater than 


$25,000
6
 


All public work, including any contract for the 


construction, repair, remodeling or improvement of 


any public work, building, or furnishing of supplies 


or material of any kind where the estimated cost of 


such work will exceed $25,000 shall be let by 


contract to the lowest responsible bidder. (See 


Wis. Stat. § 59.52(29)(a).) 
 


MUNICIPAL 


DISTRICTS 


Contracts less than 


$5,000
2
 


Although not mandated by law, it is recommended 


that the grant applicant obtain quotes from several 


sources (preferably three vendors) to obtain the best 


price.  Grant applicants should telephone vendors and 


ask them to submit a written estimate/quote for goods 


or services.  Additionally, grant applicants should 


maintain a file with the names of vendors contacted, 


the written quotes obtained, and a written explanation 


of the vendor selected (if not low bidder). 
 


Contracts greater than 


$5,000 but less than 


$25,000
7
 


If the estimated cost of any public construction 


exceeds $5,000 but is not greater than $25,000, the 


municipal district shall give a Class 1 notice, under 


ch. 985, of the proposed construction before the 


contract for the construction is executed. 
 


Contracts greater than 


$25,000
7
 


All public construction, the estimated cost of which 


exceeds $25,000, shall be let by contract to the lowest 


responsible bidder. 


                                                 
5
 Any public work, the estimated cost of which does not exceed $25,000, shall be let as the board may direct. 


6
 A contract, the estimated cost of which exceeds $25,000, shall be let and entered into under s. 66.0901, except that 


the board may by a three−fourths vote of all the members entitled to a seat provide that any class of public work or 


any part thereof may be done directly by the county without submitting the same for bids. 
7
 Although not mandated by statute or administrative code, it is strongly recommended that this action be taken by 


grant applicants to remain consistent with Wis. Stat. §§ 62.15(1), 60.47(2)(a & b), and 59.52(29)(a). 







---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Procurement Guide for Local Governments Receiving Grants from the       Page 7 
Wisconsin Dept. of Natural Resources Revised February 2016 


 


RECOMMENDED BIDDING METHODS 
 


 


 Quotes:  Although not mandated by law, it is strongly recommended that grant applicants 


perform the following procedures to ensure fiscal responsibility. 


1. Obtain and document quotes from several sources (preferably three vendors) to 


obtain the best price. 


a. Telephone vendors and ask them to submit a written estimate/quote for goods 


or services. 


b. Maintain a file with the names of vendors contacted, the written quotes 


obtained, and a written explanation of the vendor selected (if not low 


bidder). 


2. Purchases over $5,000 and less than $25,000 require the publication of a Class 1 


notice.  See section below about publishing notices. 


 


 Bids:  Obtain bids through the publication of a Class 2 notice. 
 


 


WRITE AND PUBLISH NOTICES, IF REQUIRED 
 
Solicitations should clearly set forth all requirements that the bidder should fulfill in order for 


the bid to be evaluated by you. As indicated in the table above, the following notices are 


required: 


 


 Class 1 Notice — Publish a request for price quotes one time in the newspaper 


designated by the municipality's governing body as the “official newspaper of public 


record”. (See Attachment A for an example of a Class 1 written notice.) 


 


 Class 2 Notice — Publish a request for bids two times (once per week for two consecutive 


weeks, the last of which should be at least one week before the bids are to be opened) in the 


newspaper designated by the municipality's governing body as the “official newspaper of 


public record”. (See Attachment B for an example of a Class 2 written notice.) 


 


 Proof of Printing — To document compliance with the procurement guidelines, obtain  


proof of printing in the form of an Affidavit of Publication from the publisher and store 


this with the grant records. 
 


 


SELECT VENDOR 
 


 The recipient should be alert to conflicts of interest.  Such a conflict would arise when 


the employee, officer, or agent, any member of his or her immediate family, his or her 


partner, or an organization which employs or is about to employ any of these parties, has a 


financial or other interest in the firm selected for a contract.  No employee, officer, or 


agent should participate in the selection, award, or administration of a contract if a real or 


apparent conflict of interest would be involved. 







---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Procurement Guide for Local Governments Receiving Grants from the       Page 8 
Wisconsin Dept. of Natural Resources Revised February 2016 


 


 In order to ensure objective contractor performance and eliminate unfair competitive 


advantage, contractors that develop or draft bid specifications, requirements, statements of 


work, and invitations for bids and/or requests for proposals should be excluded from 


competing for such procurements. 


 


 For quotes, awards should be made to the vendor whose quote is responsive to the 


solicitation and is most advantageous to the recipient, considering price, quality and 


other factors. 


 


 For bids, the award should be made to the lowest responsible bidder. 
 


 


BIDDING EXCEPTIONS 
 
1. PURCHASES FROM OTHER UNITS OF GOVERNMENT.  Any local governmental unit 


may make purchases from another unit of government, including the state or federal 


government, without bidding. (See s. 66.0131(2), Wis. Stats.) 


 


2. MUNICIPALITIES MAY PERFORM THE WORK.  A municipality can avoid the bidding 


process by performing the work itself.  This exception allows municipal personnel to do the 


work, but it does not allow the municipality to serve as a general contractor and negotiate 


with subcontractors to do the work. (See Elliott v. Morgan, 214 Wis.2d 253, 571 N.W.2d 


866 (Ct. App. 1997).) 


 


3. CITIES AND VILLAGES ONLY BID FOR “PUBLIC CONSTRUCTION”.  Public 


construction consists of activities and public improvements which require the 


combination of materials, supplies, and labor.  It is rare that mere maintenance and other 


public works which do not involve the actual combining of materials and labor with a 


definable end result would constitute public construction. (See Natkins, Smith & Van 


Swearingen, Public Constructions in Wisconsin, p. 50 (1985).) 


 


4. EQUIPMENT; IN GENERAL.  “Public contract” means any contract for the 


construction, execution, repair, remodeling, improvement of a public work, building or 


for the furnishing of supplies, material of any kind, proposals for which are required to be 


advertised by law. (See Sec. 66.0901(1)(c), Wis. Stats.)  The definition of “public 


contract” has been previously interpreted by the Wisconsin Attorney General not to 


include equipment.  Attorney General opinions have stated that farm machinery, a police 


car, and a heavy movable engine constitute equipment, are not supplies or material, and 


therefore are not subject to competitive bidding requirements.  However, according to 


various court decisions, certain types of equipment that require contracted labor to install 


may be permanent fixtures, thus constituting improvement of a public work and requiring 


purchase by competitive bid. (See State ex. rel. Gisholt Mach. Co. v. Norsman, 168 Wis 


442, 169 N.W. 429 (1919); Wisconsin Dept of Revenue v. A. O. Smith Harvestore 


Products, Inc., 72 Wis.2d 60, 240 N.W.2d 357 (1976).) 


 







---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Procurement Guide for Local Governments Receiving Grants from the       Page 9 
Wisconsin Dept. of Natural Resources Revised February 2016 


 


5. EQUIPMENT; PLAYGROUND.  Playground equipment may not fall under the 


equipment exception to the bidding statutes.  Building a playground typically involves 


the combination of materials, supplies, and labor and may, therefore, meet the definition 


of “public construction”.  Most playground equipment is considered a fixture:  the 


materials are placed on and secured into the ground, on real estate which has been 


devoted by a municipality to a playground, with the intention of making playground 


equipment a permanent fixture.  Playground equipment, therefore, must be publicly bid if 


the estimated costs of the public construction exceeds the specified statutory amount.  


However, playground equipment for which the municipality performs the installation 


work itself, or for which the municipality contracts with another municipality for 


installation, is exempt from the bidding requirement. 


 


6. DONATIONS.  If part of the labor, materials, and/or cost of a public work project is 


donated, the project must still comply with bidding requirements, based on total project 


costs.  However, the project does not have to comply with these requirements if all of the 


project’s cost, labor, and materials are donated or the supplies and materials are donated 


and the municipality does the installation work itself or contracts with another 


municipality for the installation work. 


 


7. CONTRACTS FOR SERVICES; IN GENERAL.  Contracts which are for the 


performance of services requiring scientific knowledge and professional skill are not 


considered the performance of “public construction” or public work and so need not be 


competitively bid.  The general test to be applied in determining whether the work is 


considered “services” and is exempt from bidding requirements in whether it is 


impossible or impractical to draw specifications for the tasks identified in the contract.  


(Waste Management, Inc. v. Wisconsin Solid Waste Recycling Authority, 84 Wis.2d 462, 


267 N.W.2d 659 (1978); Aqua-Tech, Inc. v. Como Lake Protection and Rehabilitation 


Dist., 71 Wis.2d 541, 239 N.W.2d 25 (1976).) 


 


Examples of “services” exempt from competitive bidding include architectural services 


(76 AOG 182) and professional engineering services. (Aqua-Tech, Inc. v. Como Lake 


Protection and Rehabilitation Dist., 71 Wis.2d 541, 239 N.W.2d 25 (1976); Flottum v. 


City of Cumberland, 234 Wis. 654, 291 N.W. 777 (1940).) 


 


8. CONTRACTS FOR SERVICES; FEDERALLY FUNDED PROJECTS AND 


CONTRACTS FOR SERVICES.  If a project will be funded with federal funds, services 


are not automatically exempt from competitive bidding requirements.  Depending on the 


dollar amount, compliance with federal bidding procedures may be required under 


43 CFR 12.76. 


 


 If the contract is estimated to cost less than $100,000, the Federal “small purchase” 


procedures (See 43 CFR 12.76(d)(1)) should be used for contracts for services, 


supplies, or other property.  Under this procedure, a municipality must simply obtain 


an adequate number of quotes from a qualified number of sources.  Public noticing is 


not required. 


 







---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Procurement Guide for Local Governments Receiving Grants from the       Page 10 
Wisconsin Dept. of Natural Resources Revised February 2016 


 


 If the project is estimated to cost $100,000 or more, the “sealed bid” process (See 


43 CFR 12.76(d)(2)) or the “competitive proposals” (See 43 CFR 12.76(d)(3)) 


procedure should be used for contracts for services. 


 


 Under the “sealed bid” process, bids are publicly solicited and the contract is 


awarded to the lowest responsible bidder.  The sealed bid process is the preferred 


federal method for procuring construction, according to 43 CFR 12.76(d)(2).
8
 


 


 Under the “competitive proposals” procedure, a municipality must public notice 


the project (for services), and solicit an adequate number of bids.  The bidders’ 


qualifications are evaluated and the most qualified competitor is selected, subject 


to negotiations of a fair and reasonable prices.  The “competitive proposals” 


procedure, where price is not used as a selection factor, may only be used in the 


procurement of architectural or engineering services. 


 


                                                 
8
 Rule specifies “sealed bid” process is preferred if the conditions outlined in 43 CFR 12.76(d)(2)(i) apply. 







---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Procurement Guide for Local Governments Receiving Grants from the       Page 11 
Wisconsin Dept. of Natural Resources Revised February 2016 


 


 


Attachment A - Example of a Class 1 Public Notice 


Public Notice 
[Show Project Name here] 


[Show Village/City/Town/County/District Name here] 


The [Village/City/Town/County/District Name] will be performing the following work: 


____________________________________________________________________________________ 


 


 


The [Village/City/Town/County/District Name] will receive quotes for this work at 


the office of [Name of Office] located at [Address] until [Time], [Date]. Quotes will be 


reviewed and contracts will be awarded to the vendors whose quotes are most responsive to 


the solicitation and are most advantageous to the.[Village/City/Town/County/District 


Name], considering price, quality and other factors. 


Owner reserves the right to reject any and all quotes. 


Chief Elected Official Signature: ____________________________________________ 


 


Print Chief Elected Official Name: ___________________________________________ 


Date: __________________________________________________________________ 







---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Procurement Guide for Local Governments Receiving Grants from the       Page 12 
Wisconsin Dept. of Natural Resources Revised February 2016 


 


Attachment B — Example of a Class 2 Advertisement for Bids 


 


Advertisement for Bids 


[Show Project Name here] 


[Show Village/City/Town/County/District Name here] 


 


The [Village/City/Town/County/District Name] will receive sealed bids for [Project 


Name] at the office of [Name of Office] located at [Address] until [Time], [Date]. All bids 


will be publicly opened and read aloud at that time. 


 


The work for which bids are asked includes the following: 


___________________________________________________________________________ 


___________________________________________________________________________ 


___________________________________________________________________________ 


 


 


Bidding documents may be examined at [Name of Office] located at [Address]. Copies 


may be obtained from [Name of Office] upon deposit of $ [Deposit Amount] for each set. Any 


unsuccessful bidder, upon returning such within 10 days after bid opening and in good condition 


will be refunded his/her deposit. 


 


Any proposals shall be submitted in an opaque envelope, on the forms provided, and 


marked with the name and address of the bidder and accompanied by the bid security. If the 


proposal is sent through the mail, or other delivery system, the sealed envelope shall be 


enclosed in a separate envelope marked with the notation "BID ENCLOSED" and addressed 


to [Name of Office and Address]. 


[For contracts involving construction, insert the following paragraph] 


 


          No proposal shall be accepted unless accompanied by a certified check or bid bond 
equal to at least 5% of the amount bid, payable to Owner as a guarantee that, if the bid is 
accepted, the bidder will execute and file the proper contract and bond within 15 days after 
the award of the contract. The certified check or bid bond will be returned to the bidder as 
soon as the contract is signed, and if after 15 days the bidder shall fail to do so, the certified 
check or bid bond shall be forfeited to the Owner as liquidated damages. 







---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Procurement Guide for Local Governments Receiving Grants from the       Page 13 
Wisconsin Dept. of Natural Resources Revised February 2016 


 


Attachment B — Example of a Class 2 Advertisement for Bids (continued) 
 


[For contracts involving construction projects over $2000 paid partially or in full with federal funds, 


insert the following paragraph] 


 


Minimum salaries and fringes to be paid on the project shall be in accordance with 
the prevailing wage rate scale established by the Federal Department of Labor (DOL). 
Attention is called to the fact that not less than the minimum salaries and fringes set forth in 
the Contract Documents must be paid on this project, and that the Contractor must ensure 
that employees and applications for employment are not discriminated against because of 
their race, color, religion, sex, national origin, or other protected class. Federal Labor 
standards program laws, including, but not limited to the Davis Bacon Act, the Copeland 
Anti Kickback Act, and the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act will apply to all 
projects. 


 


No bidder may withdraw his/her bid within 30 days after the actual day of the opening 


thereof. 


 


 


Owner reserves the right to waive any informality or to reject all bids. 
 


 


Chief Elected Official Signature: ___________________________________________ 


Print Chief Elected Official Name: __________________________________________ 


Date: _________________________________________________________________ 







---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Procurement Guide for Local Governments Receiving Grants from the       Page 14 
Wisconsin Dept. of Natural Resources Revised February 2016 


 


  


PART 2 


REQUIREMENTS WHEN FUNDS ARE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES 
 
Grantees are required to comply with Federal guidelines when receiving grants funded with 


federal money. The federal guidelines are detailed in Office of Management and Budget (OMB) 


Circulars and the Code of Federal Regulations. To assist you, we have prepared the following 


explanations of some of the more complex requirements. 
 
 


CASH MANAGEMENT 
 
The DEPARTMENT must limit cash advances to you to the minimum amounts needed and the 


advances must be timed to be in accordance with your actual, immediate cash requirements in 


carrying out the project. The timing and amount of cash advances must be as close as is 


administratively feasible to the actual disbursements for direct project costs and the 


proportionate share of any allowable indirect costs. 
 


You should keep advances in an interest-bearing account. 
 


You are required to return interest earned on advances to DEPARTMENT at least quarterly. You 


may keep up to $100 per year for administrative purposes ($250 if the grantee is a non-profit 


entity).  Rather than sending the DEPARTMENT a check each quarter, you may deduct an amount 


equal to the interest from a subsequent reimbursement request. 
 


 


LABOR STANDARDS  
 


 THE DAVIS-BACON ACT. This Act requires that workers receive no less than the prevailing 


wages being paid for similar work in their locality. Prevailing wages are computed by the U.S. 


Department of Labor (USDOL) and are issued in the form of Federal wage decisions for each 


classification of work to be performed in the area. 
 


Violation of the Davis-Bacon Act make the contractor liable for unpaid wages and may result in 


suspension of payments, contract termination, and suspension or debarment of the contractor from 


participation in federally funded projects. 
 


The US Department of Labor's website, www.dol.gov/dol/esa/public/programs/dbralindex.html 


contains additional information. 
 


Contracts and subcontracts must include the required prevailing wage rate clauses (see the 


bidding guidance example of an Advertisement for Bids). 
 


 THE COPELAND "ANTI-KICKBACK" ACT. This Act requires that workers be paid at least 


once a week, and without any deductions or rebates except permissible deductions. Permissible 


deductions include taxes, deductions the worker authorizes in writing, and those required by court 


processes. The Act also requires contractors to submit weekly payroll records and Statements of 


Compliance to the contracting agency.  Regulations, Part 3, requires contractors and subcontractors 







---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Procurement Guide for Local Governments Receiving Grants from the       Page 15 
Wisconsin Dept. of Natural Resources Revised February 2016 


 


on construction projects covered by the Davis-Bacon Act to submit each week a "statement of 


compliance" certifying compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act requirements. This "statement of 


compliance" is usually referred to as the certified payroll. This Act applies to all contracts covered 


by the Davis-Bacon Act. 
 


Violation of the Copeland Act is a felony and may result in termination of the contract or 


criminal prosecution by the U.S. Government, punishable by a fine of $5,000, 5 years in prison, or 


both. 


 


 THE CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS ACT (CWHSSA). This Act 


requires that workers receive "overtime" pay at a rate of one and one-half times their regular hourly 


pay after they have worked 40 hours in one week on the federally funded project. The CWHSSA 


does not apply to contracts of $100,000 or less, however; the Fair Labor Standards Act will apply 


and overtime provisions are applicable to all contracts covered by the Davis-Bacon Act. 


 


Violation of the CWHSSA makes the contractor liable for unpaid wages, liquidated damages of $10 


per employee per day of violation, and, in cases of intentional violation, a fine and imprisonment 


or both. Violations may also result in termination of the contract. 


 


Applicability 


Labor standards apply to all contracts, financed in whole or in part from federal funds or in 


accordance with guarantees of a federal agency, for construction, alteration, or repair of a public 


building or public work, except as noted below. 


 


Exceptions 


 


1. Public works constructed by your own employees, commonly called "force account" 


work. A letter stating that the work was performed with your own employees should be 


submitted with your grant reimbursement request.  NOTE: There is no such thing as 


private "force account" work. 


2. Residential rehabilitation in structures with less than eight (8) units. 


3. Contracts that are part of a project of less than $2,000 value. 


4. Construction activities assisted solely by means of loans guaranteed with interest-bearing 


collateral accounts, where 1) the interest rate is the usual and customary rate on demand 


accounts; 2) the account is subject only to the usual and customary terms and conditions for 


collateral accounts; and 3) there is no "substantial likelihood" that the guarantee will be 


used. 


5. Economic development projects where federal funds are used only for nonconstruction 


activities such as acquisition; machinery and equipment purchase (not including 


installation); stock (equity) purchase; and operating capital loans where such funds 


cannot be used for construction. 







---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Procurement Guide for Local Governments Receiving Grants from the       Page 16 
Wisconsin Dept. of Natural Resources Revised February 2016 


 


MATCHING 
All contributions, including cash and third party in-kind, shall be accepted as part of the 


recipient's cost sharing or matching when these contributions meet all of the following criteria. 
 


 Are verifiable from the recipient's records. 


 Are not included as contributions for any other federally-assisted project or program. 


 Are necessary and reasonable for proper and efficient accomplishment of project or 


program objectives. 


 Are allowable under the applicable cost principles. 


 Are not paid by the Federal Government under another award. 


 Are provided for in the approved budget when required by the Federal awarding 


agency. 


 Conform to other provisions of OMB Circular A-102 and OMB Circular A-110 as 


applicable. 
 


Matching may be in the form of allowable costs incurred or in-kind contributions, including third-


part in-kind contributions. The following requirements pertain to the recipient's supporting records 


for in-kind contributions from third parties. 
 


 Volunteer services shall be documented and, to the extent feasible, supported by the 


same methods used by the recipient for its own employees. 


 The basis for determining the valuation for personal service, material, equipment, 


buildings and land shall be documented. 
 


 


PROCUREMENT 
See Part 1, “Requirements When Grants Are from State Sources” at the beginning of this document. 
 
 


RECORDS RETENTION 
Financial records, supporting documents, statistical records, and all other records pertinent to an 


award shall be retained for a period of three years from the date of submission of the final 


expenditure report or, for awards that are renewed quarterly or annually, from the date of the 


submission of the quarterly or annual financial report, as authorized by the Federal awarding 


agency. The only exceptions are the following. 
 


1. If any litigation, claim, or audit is started before the expiration of the 3-year period, the 


records shall be retained until all litigation, claims or audit findings involving the records 


have been resolved and final action taken. 


2. Records for real property and equipment acquired with Federal funds shall be retained for 


3 years after final disposition. 


3. When records are transferred to or maintained by the Federal awarding agency, the 3-year 


retention requirement is not applicable to the recipient. 


4. Indirect cost rate proposals, cost allocations plans, etc. 
 
 


***** 







Example 
Class 1 Public Notice  


 
PUBLIC NOTICE 


WILDLAND FIRE SKID UNIT FOR 
AN ATV 


NO NAME FIRE DEPARTMENT 
 
 The No Name Fire Department will  
receive quotes for a “completely equipped skid 
unit for an ATV” at the office of the No Name 
Fire Department or mailed to the No Name 
Fire Department PO Box 111 Somewhere WI 
53572 until (date).  Quotes will be reviewed  
and will be awarded to the Vendor whose quote 
is most responsive to the solicitation and are most 
advantageous to the No Name Fire Department, 
considering price, quality, and other factors. 
 No Name Fire Department reserves the 
right to reject any and all quotes. 
  NO NAME FIRE DEPARTMENT 
     FIRE CHIEF 
     Eileen Trainor 


 
Note:  Costs associated with 


publishing the notice are eligible for 
reimbursement. 


 
 


 





		10 R-127-2022 - Authorizing Fire Department to request grant funding for wildland and brush fire equipment

		10a - DNR Grant Memo 2023

		10b - FFP_Checklist

		This checklist is provided to help you conduct your fire organization’s FFP project. Important dates are noted to keep your project on track. This checklist is not intended to replace the detailed procedural information found in the “FFP Grant Procedu...



		10c - FFPGrantProcedures

		10d - FY23FFPEligibilityList

		Sheet1



		10e - ProcurementGuide

		10f - Public_Notice_Sample










SIDEWALK INSTALLATION POLICY 


City Council Approved 8/25/2020 


I. PREAMBLE 


This policy has been implemented to promote pedestrian safety and walkability in the City of 


Stoughton by creating an interconnected network of sidewalks for recreation and destination travel. 


II. POLICY STATEMENT 


The long-term goal of the City of Stoughton is to install and maintain sidewalks to promote a 


walkable and safe environment for its citizens and visitors. This policy attempts to prioritize the 


installation of new sidewalks consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan.  The Common 


Council may approve a deviation from this Policy through a majority vote. 


III. NEW SUBDIVISION AND DEVELOPMENT OF VACANT PARCELS 


SIDEWALK ORDINANCE REGULATIONS 


A. Ord. 10-2c) – Requires sidewalks to be installed on vacant lots at the time of 


development prior to occupancy of the building. 


B. Ord. 66-706 – Requires all new subdivisions to have new sidewalks installed on 


both sides of every street including new subdivisions. 


I V .  ST RE ET RE CO NST R U CTIO N  AN D  I N FIL L S IDEW AL K  POL IC Y   


A. All streets being considered for major reconstruction (i.e. curb and gutter) will be 


planned for sidewalks as follows: 


1. Both sides of all collector traffic level streets. 


2. Both sides of identified key routes to schools. 


3. Both sides of identified key routes to parks. 


4. Both sides of routes with identified heavy foot traffic such as the downtown 


area. 


5. Whether to include sidewalk on either or both sides of existing local streets 


without existing sidewalks shall be determined on a case-by-case basis after 


consideration of the following factors: 


i. ADA accessibility 


ii. Available right-of-way 


iii. Vehicular and pedestrian traffic volume 







iv. Connectivity to existing sidewalks 


v. Excessive costs due to physical characteristics such as the need 


for extensive retaining walls 


vi. Proximity to parks, schools, churches and other highly traveled 


destinations 


vii. Environmental impacts such as trees and wetlands 


viii. Length of dead end street or cul-de-sac 


 


B. Repairs to existing sidewalks will follow the City’s sidewalk replacement program 


and will be based on annual program funding. 


 


V. Sidewalk Installation Approval Process 


A. Staff identifies and submits Capital Improvement Project (CIP) road construction 


projects  


B. The CIP Committee reviews and recommends road construction projects or 


engineering design requests for approval by Committee of the Whole (COW). 


C. Requests displayed on website and social media. 


D. The Committee of the Whole (COW) recommends road construction projects or 


design requests for approval to City Council. 


E. Updated Requests displayed on website and social media. 


F. The City Council will hold a Public Hearing at a Budget Meeting. 


G. City Council approves road construction projects or design requests at the City 


Council Budget meeting. 


H. Updated requests displayed on website and social media. 


I. After the project gets approval in the capital budget, design for sidewalks shall 


commence and shall be designed by staff to fit within the above outlined policy.  


During preliminary design, constructability challenges and policy guidelines will be 


presented to the Public Works Committee for direction on how to proceed with the 


preliminary design.  During preliminary design, the Public Works Committee shall 


determine whether the preliminary design for any local street described in Section IV. 


A. 5 should be constructed with sidewalks on either or both sides of the local street.   


In making any such determination, the Public Works Committee shall consider the 


factors in Section IV. A. 5.  The committee’s rationale and factors applied supporting 


its determination shall be stated in the minutes of the committee’s meeting.  


J. Staff shall present the preliminary sidewalk design to solicit feedback from the 


following stakeholder groups:  


a. Public Works Committee 







b. From those property owners affected by sidewalk installation (Adjacent 


property owners shall be invited to a public meeting via letter sent through the 


United States Postal Service.)  


c. City Council 


K. Recommendations to deviate from the sidewalk installation policy shall be considered 


by the Public Works Committee and who will make a recommendation to the 


Common Council. The committee’s rationale supporting deviation from the sidewalk 


policy shall be stated in the minutes of the committee’s meeting.  


L. Final approval to deviate from the sidewalk installation policy shall be voted on by 


the common council and the majority vote shall prevail.  Final approval of the 


placement of sidewalks on local streets described in Section IV. A. 5 shall be made by 


the common council, after considering the determination of the Public Works 


Committee during the preliminary design phase, and the factors in Section IV. A. 5.  


 


VI. COLLECTOR STREETS 


North-South collector streets include: King Street, Lincoln Avenue, Van Buren Street, Kings Lynn 


Road, Page Street, Division Street, Fourth Street, Hoel Avenue, Veterans Road, Racetrack Road, 


Oak Opening Drive, Johnson Street and Academy Street. East-West collector streets include: Main 


Street, Hamilton Street, Greig Trail, Kreideman Drive, Wilson Street, Milwaukee Street, Roby 


Road, Jackson Street, Forton Street, Jefferson Street, South Street, and Academy Street. 


 


 


T:\POLICIES\Sidewalk Installation Policy - Approved by Council 8-25-2020.docx 








CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. FORREST STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN  


 
RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to enter into an agreement with Ralph 


and Mary Jo Sundling regarding Tree Removal and Replacement 
 
Committee 
Action: 


? 
 


 
Fiscal Impact: $ 


 
   
File Number: 


 
R-128-2022 


 
Date 
Introduced: 


 
June 14, 2022 


 
The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 
 


RECITALS 
 
WHEREAS, Ralph and Mary Jo Sundling (the “Sundlings”), own real property at 200 Rowe 
Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin 53589; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City plans to install curb, gutter, and sidewalks on the west side of Rowe Street.  
There is a large Siberian Elm in the front of the Sundlings’ residence at 200 Rowe Street. The 
root structure of the elm tree extends into the right-of-way where the City plans to install a 
sidewalk. The City cannot work around the elm tree’s root structure and must remove the vast 
majority of the root structure in the right-of-way to install the sidewalk; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Director of Public Works and the City Forester have determined that removal 
of the root structure could lead to the elm tree’s structural failure, which could cause the tree to 
fall onto Rowe Street or the Sundlings’ house. Once the root structure is removed, the elm tree 
will pose a dangerous condition to the general public, if left standing. The elm tree must be 
removed to avoid creating this potentially dangerous condition; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is the Director of Public Works’ opinion that the elm tree is a dangerous tree as 
defined in Section 58-12 of the City of Stoughton Ordinances; and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the above recitals, the City has ordered the Sundlings to remove the 
Elm tree and the Sundlings intend to contest the order (the “Dispute”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Parties desire to enter into an Agreement (Exhibit A) to resolve the Dispute; 
now therefore,  







 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city 
official(s) be hereby directed and authorized to enter into an agreement (Exhibit A) with Ralph 
and Mary Jo Sundling. 


 
 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
 
                                             
Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 
 
Council Action:           Override  Vote     
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\R -- 2022 - 200 Rowe Street Agreement.docx 
 
 
 


  







 
 
 


Exhibit A 
  







 
AGREEMENT 


 
This Agreement (the “Agreement”) is between Ralph and Mary Jo Sundling (the 


“Sundlings”), and the City of Stoughton (the “City”), a municipal corporation organized and 
existing under the laws of the State of Wisconsin (individually, the Party; collectively, the 
Parties). 


 
WHEREAS, the Sundlings own real property at 200 Rowe Street, Stoughton, 


Wisconsin 53589; 
 
WHEREAS, the City plans to install curb, gutter, and sidewalks on the west side of Rowe 


Street.  There is a large Siberian Elm in the front of the Sundlings’ residence at 200 Rowe Street. 
The root structure of the elm tree extends into the right-of-way where the City plans to install a 
sidewalk. The City cannot work around the elm tree’s root structure and must remove the vast 
majority of the root structure in the right-of-way to install the sidewalk;  


 
WHEREAS, the Director of Public Works and the City Forester have determined that 


removal of the root structure could lead to the elm tree’s structural failure, which could cause the 
tree to fall onto Rowe Street or the Sundlings’ house. Once the root structure is removed, the elm 
tree will pose a dangerous condition to the general public, if left standing. The elm tree must be 
removed to avoid creating this potentially dangerous condition; 


 
WHEREAS, it is the Director of Public Works’ opinion that the elm tree is a dangerous 


tree as defined in Section 58-12 of the City of Stoughton Ordinances;  
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the above recitals, the City has ordered the Sundlings to remove 


the Elm tree and the Sundlings intend to contest the order (the “Dispute”); 
 
 WHEREAS, the Parties desire to enter into this Agreement to resolve the Dispute. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the various covenants and agreements 
contained herein and other good and valuable consideration, the sufficiency and receipt of which 
are hereby acknowledged by each of the Parties, and intending to be legally bound hereby, the 
Parties agree as follows: 
 


1. Recitals.  The foregoing recitals are hereby incorporated into the body of this 
Agreement as though fully set forth herein. 


 
2. Removal of Siberian Elm. The City will remove the Siberian Elm tree, including 


the stump a minimum of 3” below the surface, outside of the Sundling residence at 200 Rowe 
Street at the City’s own cost. The Sundlings consent to the City and its contractors entering their 
property to remove the elm tree. The City will not charge the cost of removal to the Sundling 
property, and in exchange, the Sundlings agree to not contest, and waive any right to contest, the 
removal of the elm tree.  


 







3. Protection of Norway Maple. The City will use its best efforts to preserve a large 
Norway Maple outside of the Sundling residence at 200 Rowe Street. The City agrees to remove 
the maple tree at its own cost in the event the Norway Maple dies or is in a dangerous condition 
within one year of the completion of the sidewalk installation outside of 200 Rowe Street. Whether 
the maple tree is dead or in a dangerous condition will be determined by the City Forester. Prior 
to the beginning of the work at 200 Rowe Street, the City Forester will examine the tree and 
document its condition. Then, one year after the completion of the work, the City Forester will 
examine the tree again and document its condition. At that point, the City Forester will determine 
whether the tree is dead or in a dangerous condition.  


 
If the maple tree is dead or in a dangerous condition, the Director of Public Works will 
communicate the condition of the tree to the Sundlings. After being apprised of the Director of 
Public Works’ position, within fourteen days, the Sundlings will make the decision whether they 
desire the City to remove the tree at the City’s own cost and plant a tree at the City’s own cost, 
with the species to be determined by mutual agreement at a later date. If the Sundlings decline the 
City’s offer to remove the tree and plant a replacement at its own cost, the Sundlings forever waive 
that opportunity. The Sundlings affirmatively acknowledge that if the maple tree is dead or in a 
dangerous condition, the City may remove the tree pursuant to Section 58-12 and consent to the 
City removing the tree in such a circumstance. The Sundlings further acknowledge that pursuant 
to Section 58-12, the City may charge the cost of removal on the Sundling property. 
 


4.     Mutual Release of Claims.  Upon the execution of this Agreement, the Parties will 
release and forever discharge each other of and from all claims, demands, damages, actions and 
causes of action, torts, obligations, and any and all other liabilities of any kind or description 
whatsoever, either in law or equity, whether known or unknown, foreseen or unforeseen, which 
the Parties may now have, claim to have, or may have had up to the execution of this Agreement, 
arising out of or related to the Dispute described herein. In particular, the Sundlings affirmatively 
release and waive any claims that they may have with respect to compensation for the removal of 
the Siberian Elm or Norway Maple. 
 


5.     Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains the full and complete agreement 
between the Parties on the subject of the Dispute, and there are no oral or implied agreements or 
understandings not specifically set forth herein. No other Party, or agent or attorney of any other 
Party, or any person, firm, corporation, or any other entity has made any promise, representation, 
or warranty, whatsoever, express, implied, or statutory, not contained herein, concerning the 
subject matter hereof, to induce the execution of this Agreement.  No signatory has executed this 
Agreement in reliance on any promise, representation, or warranty not contained herein. No 
modifications of this Agreement may be made except by means of a written agreement signed by 
each of the Parties.  The waiver of any breach of this Agreement by any Party shall not be a waiver 
of any other subsequent or prior breach. 
 


6. Governing Law, Jurisdiction and Venue.  This Agreement shall be governed by, 
and construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of Wisconsin applicable to contracts 
executed in and to be performed in that state and without regard to any applicable conflicts of 
law.  The Parties acknowledge and agree that any controversy, claim, or dispute arising out of or 
relating in any way to this Agreement, its performance, or any asserted breach of this Agreement 







which cannot promptly be resolved amicably by the Parties shall exclusively be heard in the Circuit 
Court of Dane County. As to any and all disputes arising out of or related to this Agreement, the 
Parties hereby: (a) waive all objections to that court exercising jurisdiction over any of them; and (b) 
waive all objections to venue in that court. 


 
7. Authority. Each person signing this Agreement on behalf of a Party represents and 


warrants that he or she has full power and authority to enter into this Agreement and to fully, 
completely, and finally settle the Dispute, including but not limited to any and all claims and 
counterclaims which were or could have been asserted in the Dispute, and the authority to 
effectuate the terms set forth in this Agreement. 
 
 
City of Stoughton 
 
 
 
Signature: 
 
Name: 
Title:  
Date: 


Ralph Sundling 
 
 
 
Signature: 
 
Name: 
Title:  
Date: 
 
Mary Jo Sundling 
 
Signature: 
 
Name: 
Title:  
Date: 


 
 


 
 





























		11 R -128- 2022 - 200 Rowe Street Agreement

		20220609_133302

		20220609_133309

		20220609_133343

		20220609_133408

		20220609_133417

		20220609_133420






CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST ST, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Collateral Assignment of Agreement for Subdivision Improvements  
Kettle Park West Phase II 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Finance reviews on June 14, 2022 


 
Fiscal Impact:   Zero 
 
File Number: 


 
R-129-2022 


 
Date  June 14, 2022 
4/02020222220I d d  


 


 
The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common council does proclaim as follows: 
 


RECITALS: 


On March 22, 2022, the City entered into an agreement with Kettle Park West, LLC 
(Developer), titled Subdivision Improvements Kettle Park West Phase II outlining the obligations 
for this phase of development.  


 
Developer is financing these improvements and is seeking Collateral Assignment of 


Subdivision Improvements Agreement by Kettle Park West, LLC to One Community Bank as 
outlined in Exhibit A; Collateral Assignment of Agreement for Subdivision Improvements. 


 
RESOLUTION 


 
The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin (the “City”) hereby acknowledges the Collateral 


Assignment of Subdivision Improvements Agreement by Kettle Park West, LLC to One 
Community Bank, and consents thereto.   


 
 


 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       
  
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
  
                                             
Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 


 
Council Action:           Override  Vote       
 
 
S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\R--2022 - Collateral Assignment of Development Agreement - Kettle Park West.docx 
 
 







Exhibit A 
  







COLLATERAL ASSIGNMENT OF AGREEMENT  
FOR SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENTS  


 
THIS COLLATERAL ASSIGNMENT OF AGREEMENT FOR SUBDIVISION 


IMPROVEMENTS (this “Assignment”) is made as of ________________, 2022, by Kettle Park 
West, LLC, a Wisconsin limited liability company (“Borrower”) to One Community Bank (the 
“Lender”). 


RECITALS: 


WHEREAS, pursuant to that certain Land Development and Term Loan Agreement and 
Letter of Credit Agreement of even date herewith (“Loan Agreement”), by and between 
Borrower and Lender, Lender has this date agreed to loan to Borrower up to the aggregate 
principal amount of $5,000,000.00 (the “Development Loan”) and issue a letter of credit to the 
City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, for the benefit of Borrower in the principal amount of 
$3,088,665.57 (the “Letter of Credit”), the repayment of which Development Loan and Letter of 
Credit are secured in part by a Construction Mortgage and Fixture Filing, Assignment of Leases 
and Rents, Assignment of Warranties, Contracts and Plans and Specifications and Selective 
Business Security Agreement (collectively, the “Mortgage” in this Assignment) pertaining to 
interests in certain land described in the Mortgage and the improvements to be constructed 
thereon (collectively, the “Property”) owned by Borrower and located in Dane County, 
Wisconsin; 


WHEREAS, the Borrower is a party to that certain Agreement for Subdivision 
Improvements Kettle Park West Phase II dated as of March 22, 2022, as may be amended or 
restated from time to time (the “Subdivision Improvements Agreement”) relating to the Property, 
by and between the Borrower and the City of Stoughton, a Wisconsin municipal corporation (the 
“City”);  


WHEREAS, it is a condition precedent to Lender’s obligation to make the Development 
Loans and issue the Letters of Credit to or for the benefit of Borrower that Borrower execute and 
deliver this Assignment with respect to the Subdivision Improvements Agreement; 


ASSIGNMENT: 


NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and the covenants hereinafter 
contained, and to induce Lender to provide and maintain the Development Loans to Borrower 
pursuant to the Development Loan Agreement and issue the Letter of Credit for the benefit of 
Borrower, Borrower agrees as follows: 


1. Assignment.  As security for all obligations of Borrower under the Loan 
Agreement and the Letter of Credit Agreement, including, without limitation, the repayment of 
the Development Loans and the Letter of Credit (collectively, the “Obligations”), Borrower 
assigns, pledges and transfers to Lender for collateral purposes and grants to Lender a security 
interest in all of its rights, remedies (at law or in equity), title and interest in and to (a) the 
Subdivision Improvements Agreement and (b) all agreements, documents, certificates, 
instruments, and other materials relating to the Subdivision Improvements Agreement 







(collectively, with the Subdivision Improvements Agreement, the “Assigned Documents”) and 
(c) with all proceeds thereof, including, without limitation, its rights and remedies with respect to 
any breach by any counterparty of any of its representations, warranties, covenants and 
obligations under the Assigned Documents.  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, as 
security for the Obligations, Borrower specifically assigns, pledges and transfers to Lender for 
collateral purposes, and grants to Lender a security interest in all rights of Borrower to receive 
any sums of money or property in connection with the Assigned Documents. 


2. Representations and Warranties.  Borrower hereby acknowledges and affirms that 
the representations, warranties and covenants of the Borrower with respect to the Assigned 
Documents and the rights and remedies of Lender with respect to the pledge of security interest 
in and collateral assignment of the Assigned Documents made and granted hereby are more fully 
set forth in the Loan Agreement and the Letter of Credit Agreement, the terms and provisions of 
which are incorporated by reference herein as if fully set forth herein. 


3. Performance and Enforcement.  So long as no Event of Default, as defined in the 
Land Development Loan Agreement, the Letter of Credit Agreement or the Mortgage, has 
occurred and is continuing, insofar as the Borrower may have any right, privilege or claim under 
the Assigned Documents, the Borrower will perform all of its obligations under the Assigned 
Documents and timely exercise its enforcement rights under such Assigned Documents, will 
enforce the same diligently and will give Lender notice of each such enforcement undertaken by 
the Borrower. 


4. Rights following Event of Default.  Upon the occurrence and during the 
continuance of an Event of Default, Lender shall have the right, power and authority to 
(a) declare this Assignment to be unconditional and absolute, and thereby succeed fully to all of 
Borrower’s rights, remedies, title and interest in, to and under the Assigned Documents, 
(b) notify counterparties that the Assigned Documents have been assigned to Lender, whether or 
not it has commenced or completed foreclosure or taken possession thereof, and (c) exercise all 
rights of Borrower under the Assigned Documents.  In furtherance of the foregoing, upon the 
occurrence and during the continuance of an Event of Default, Borrower hereby irrevocably 
authorizes and empowers Lender, in its sole discretion, to assert, either directly or on behalf of 
Borrower, any right, privilege or claim which Borrower then or thereafter may have under the 
Assigned Documents, as Lender may deem proper, and to receive and collect any and all 
damages, awards and other monies resulting therefrom and to apply the proceeds thereof against 
any Obligation then outstanding.  Nothing herein shall be construed to require Lender to take any 
action in respect of the Assigned Documents, whether for the account of Borrower or otherwise. 


5. Lender as Attorney-in-Fact.  Borrower hereby irrevocably makes, constitutes and 
appoints Lender (and all officers, employees or agents designated by it) as its true and lawful 
attorney-in-fact for the purposes of enabling Lender or its agent or designee to exercise its rights 
under Section 4 hereof. 


6. Notice of Events.  Borrower shall keep Lender informed of all circumstances 
which have or may have a material and adverse effect upon the exercise of its rights and 
remedies under the Assigned Documents, including, without limitation, prompt notice of any 
breach or default by Borrower under any of the Assigned Documents.  In any event, Borrower 







shall not release, cancel, sell, compromise, waive, amend, alter or modify any of its rights or 
remedies under the Assigned Documents, without first obtaining the prior written consent of 
Lender. 


7. Responsibilities of Borrower.  Borrower expressly acknowledges and agrees that 
it shall remain liable under the Assigned Documents, to observe and perform all of the conditions 
and obligations therein contained to be observed and performed by it, and that neither this 
Assignment, nor any action taken by Lender pursuant hereto, shall cause Lender to be under any 
obligation or liability in any respect whatsoever to any party to the Assigned Documents or for 
the observance or performance of any of the representations, warranties, conditions, covenants, 
agreements or terms therein contained. 


8. Lender not Responsible.  Notwithstanding Lender’s rights hereunder, Lender shall 
not be obligated to perform, and Lender does not undertake to perform, any obligation, covenant, 
condition or term with respect to the Assigned Documents on account of this Assignment. 
Lender shall have no responsibility on account of this Assignment for the control or care of the 
Assigned Documents, other than to handle the Assigned Documents in the same manner as it 
handles other collateral in the ordinary course of business. 


9. Successor and Assigns.  This Assignment and all obligations of Borrower 
hereunder shall be binding upon the successors and assigns of the Borrower (including any 
debtor-in-possession on behalf of the Borrower) and shall, together with the rights and remedies 
of Lender, inure to the benefit of Lender and all future holders of any instrument evidencing any 
of the Obligations and the respective successors and assigns.  No sales of participations, sales, 
assignments, transfers or other dispositions of any agreement governing or instrument evidencing 
the Obligations or any portion thereof or interest therein shall in any manner affect the 
assignment made and security interest granted hereunder to Lender.  Borrower may not assign, 
sell, hypothecate or otherwise transfer any interest in or obligation under this Assignment. 


10. Notices.  All notices, requests and other communications to the Borrower or 
Lender hereunder shall be made in accordance with the provisions of the Loan Agreement. 


11. No Waiver.  No failure or delay on the part of Lender in exercising any right or 
remedy hereunder, and no course of dealing between Borrower on the one hand and Lender on 
the other hand shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any 
right or remedy hereunder, under the Development Loan Agreement, under the Letter of Credit 
Agreement or under the Mortgage, preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise 
of any other right or remedy hereunder or thereunder.  The rights and remedies herein, in the 
Development Loan Agreement, in the Letter of Credit Agreement and in the Mortgage are 
cumulative and not exclusive of any rights or remedies which Lender would otherwise have.  No 
notice to or demand on Borrower not required hereunder in any case shall entitle Borrower to 
any other or further notice or demand in similar or other circumstances or constitute a waiver of 
the rights of Lender to any other or further action in any circumstances with notice or demand. 


12. Amendment.  No amendment or waiver of any provision of this Assignment, nor 
consent to any departure by Borrower from this Assignment, shall in any event be effective 
unless the same shall be in writing and signed by Lender and then such waiver or consent shall 







be effective only the specific instance and for the specific purpose for which given. 


13. Governing Law.  This Assignment and the rights and obligations of the parties 
hereunder shall be construed in accordance with and governed by the internal laws (without 
giving effect to the conflict of law principles thereof) of the State of Wisconsin. 


14. Severability.  In case any provision in or obligation under this Assignment shall 
be invalid, illegal or unenforceable, in whole or in part, in any jurisdiction, the validity, legality 
and enforceability of the remaining provisions or obligations, or of such provision or obligation 
in any other jurisdiction, shall not in any way be affected or impaired thereby. 


15. Counterparts.  This Assignment may be executed in any number of counterparts 
and by the different parties hereto on separate counterparts, each of which when so executed and 
delivered shall be an original, but all of which shall together constitute one and the same 
instrument. 


[Signature page follows] 
 


  







IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Borrower and Lender have caused this Assignment to be 
executed by their respective duly authorized officers as of the date first above written. 


 
ASSIGNOR:  


 KETTLE PARK WEST, LLC           (SEAL) 
  
 By: Forward Development Group, LLC, 
  its Manager 
 
 
 By:  ______________________________________  
 Name: David M. Jenkins 
 Title:   Manager 
 
  
 
 LENDER: 
 ONE COMMUNITY BANK           (SEAL) 
 a Wisconsin state chartered bank 
 
  
 By:  ______________________________________  
 Name/Title:  Scott Hoerth, Senior Market President, 
  Commercial Banking  
 


  







ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF ASSIGNMENT AND CONSENT 
 


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin (the “City”) hereby acknowledges the above Collateral 
Assignment of Subdivision Improvements Agreement by Kettle Park West, LLC to One 
Community Bank, and consents thereto.  The City agrees that Lender shall have the same 
number of days afforded to Borrower to cure any breach or default by Borrower under the 
Subdivision Improvements Agreement, but Lender is not under any obligation to do so. 


 
The City acknowledges appointment of Lender as Borrower's attorney-in-fact under 


above section 5 and agrees, upon receipt of Notice of Exercise from Lender, to recognize Lender 
as successor in interest of the Borrower for purposes of the Subdivision Improvements 
Agreement. The City agrees that Lender may, with the prior written consent of the City, which 
consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, delayed, or conditioned, further assign to a third 
party Lender's rights and obligations under either the Collateral Assignment or the Subdivision 
Improvements Agreement, and upon such assignment Lender shall be relieved of all obligations 
and requirements under the Subdivision Improvements Agreement. 


 
Nothing in this Collateral Assignment of Subdivision Improvements Agreement, and 


nothing in the Loan Agreement or the Letter of Credit Agreement shall be construed to amend or 
modify the Subdivision Improvements Agreement.   


 
Dated:  _____________, 2022. 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON          (SEAL) 
Dane County, Wisconsin 
 
 
By:        
      Tim Swadley, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
        
Candee Christen, City Clerk 
 
 


 








 


Meetings of:       COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON   
Date//Time:       Tuesday, June 14, 2022, 7:00 p.m. 
Location: The meeting of the Common Council will be conducted as a hybrid meeting. (Virtual and in person) 
  Virtual: You can join the meeting from your computer, tablet, or smartphone via Zoom. 
  
  https://zoom.us/j/94059601811?pwd=S3BhVnNUL0NMbjRpOGNBM3ZEa3Z5QT09 
 


Meeting ID: 940 5960 1811 
Passcode: 636634 
One tap mobile 
+13126266799,,94059601811#,,,,*636634# US (Chicago)  
+19292056099,,94059601811#,,,,*636634# US (New York)   


 
In person: Council Chambers, (2nd Floor of Public Safety Building) 


           321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin   
  
  The meeting can also be livestreamed on https://wsto.tv/live and Spectrum       
  Channel 981 or on TDS Channel 12. 
 
Members: Mayor Tim Swadley, Phil Caravello, Ben Heili, Regina Hirsch, Fred Hundt, Greg Jenson, Jean Ligocki,  
                 Tom Majewski, Lisa Reeves, Brett Schumacher, Joyce Tikalsky, Rachel Venegas, and Frank Raff 


ATTENTION COUNCIL MEMBERS: TWO-THIRDS OF MEMBERS NEEDED FOR A QUORUM (EIGHT). The Council may 
only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are unable to attend the meeting, please notify the City Clerk’s office via 
telephone (608) 873-6677 or via email cchristen@ci.stoughton.wi.us 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
1. Roll Call 


 
2. Minutes and Reports:  
 Finance (5/10/22); Tree Commission (4/12/22); Alcohol Policy Committee (5/3/22); Sustainability subcommittee 


(3/8/22, 4/11/22); Public Safety Committee (4/26/22)  
  
3. Public Comment Period: 


• If you would like to speak during public comment period, please fill out the form and submit it by 
6:30 p.m. on June 14, 2022. http://speak.cityofstoughton.com.  


 
4. Communications and Presentations: 


• Landmarks Commission – Local Landmark plaque presentation 
• Juneteenth Proclamation 
• Pride Month Proclamation 
• ARPA update 


 


 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA  
Notice is hereby given that Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, will hold a 
regular or special meeting as indicated on the date and at the time and location given below. 


  


  



https://zoom.us/j/94059601811?pwd=S3BhVnNUL0NMbjRpOGNBM3ZEa3Z5QT09

https://wsto.tv/live

mailto:cchristen@ci.stoughton.wi.us

http://speak.cityofstoughton.com/





5. Consent Agenda: 
 A.  Council Minutes - May 24, 2022 


 
B.  R-118-2022 Resolution confirming the Mayor's Committee Appointments to Boards, Committees, and 
Commissions, Pursuant to 2-127 of the Municipal Code. 
 
C.  R-119-2022 Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to issue Operator licenses to various 
applicants. 
 
D.  R-120-2022 Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the Liquor License renewals 
for the period of July 1, 2022, to June 30, 2023. (PSC recommended approval 6-0 on 5/25/22) 
  
 E. R-121-2022 Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the         
Consumption   Permits for the period of July 1, 2022, to June 30, 2023. (PSC recommended 
approval 6-0 on 5/25/22) 
 
F. R-122-2022 Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the Sidewalk Cafe      
Permits for the period of July 1, 2022, to June 30, 2023. (PSC recommended approval 6-0 on 
5/25/22) 
 


 


 
 


OLD BUSINESS  
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
6.  R-123-2022 Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve a Temporary Class “B”/Class 
“B” Retailer’s License and Special Event License to the Stoughton Opera House Friends Association for 
Catfish River Music Festival. (PSC recommended approval 6-0 on 5/25/22) 
 
7.  R-124-2022 Approval of Riverwalk Change Order No.1.  


Finance Committee meets June 14, 2022 regarding resolution – TIME SENSITIVE ITEM  
 


8.  R-125-2022 Resolution to write off 2019-2021 delinquent personal property tax bills. (Finance Committee 
recommends approval 3-0 on 5/24/2022) 
 
9.  R-126-2022 Authorize contract with municipal advisor regarding TID #6 boundary expansion. (Finance 
Committee recommends approval 3-0 on 5/24/2022) 
 
10. R-127-2022 Authorizing Fire Department to request grant funding for wildland and brush fire equipment. 
(Finance Committee recommends approval 3-0 on 5/24/2022) 
 
11. Discussion and possible action regarding current sidewalk policies and how it relates to trees and other 
landscape or vegetation. 
 
12. R-128-2022 Agreement with Ralph and Mary Jo Sundling regarding Tree Removal and Replacement at 200 
Rowe St. 


13. R-129-2022 Collateral Assignment of Development Agreement - Kettle Park West. 


Finance Committee meets June 14, 2022 regarding resolution – TIME SENSITIVE ITEM  







ADJOURNMENT 
 


Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. 
For information or to request such assistance, please call the City Hall at (608) 873-6677. 
By: Mayor Tim Swadley, Council President Regina Hirsch 
 
NOTE:  AN EXPANDED MEETING MAY CONSTITUTE A QUORUM OF THE COUNCIL. 
 
Dial by your location 
        +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
        +1 929 205 6099 US (New York) 
        +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 
        +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
        +1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 
        +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
Meeting ID: 940 5960 1811 
Passcode: 636634 
Find your local number: https://zoom.us/u/aukYWYK05 
 
 


 
 



https://zoom.us/u/aukYWYK05














Tree Commission Meeting Minutes 
Thursday, April 14th,, 2022 @ 5:00 PM 
Virtual Meeting - Stoughton, WI 
 
Members Present:  Mike Point, Kevin Short, Aaron Mazzone & Dean Tangeman & Kathy Esch 


Absent & Excused:  Fred Hundt. Jim Fitzgibbon  


Staff:    City Forester John Kemppainen and Admin Asst. Jen Wagner  


Guest:  


Call to order:  Tangeman called to order @ 5:03 PM  


 
• Communications:  


• Kemppainen stated he received a donation from Urban Wood Network for $1,700.00 for grant 
work that he did on a project. The grant will be used as we see to be fit.  


• Kemppainen stated he sold lumber to Grand Inspired a few times this past month amounting to 
$110.00  


• Point stated that the Arbor Day Art Show set up went well and he was able to check in several 
times throughout the week for any new possible pieces.  


• Kemppainen stated that the Kiln was decommissioned and Public Works Department is building 
a new stationary solar Kiln to be at the Yard waste site.  
 


• Approval of minutes from March 10th, 2022 Meeting:  Motion by Point, seconded by Mazzone to 
approve the minutes.  Carried 5-0. 


 
 


• March Forestry Reports:  Kemppainen stated: 
       
• There was a large storm event on 3/5/22 which resulted in the loss of several trees. A special brush 


collection event was scheduled because of the storm and 8 days were spent picking up brush. An 
additional 3-4days were spent on remediation tree work and removals 


• I assisted with snow removal for one storm event in March. Unfortunately, this snow event took place 
during the cleanup efforts of the wind event on 3/5/22 and slowed the cleanup effort 


• Road construction project planning continued in March. Meetings and phone calls with residents who 
will be impacted by the road projects and subsequent tree removals took up a sizable amount of time.  


• No residents were notified of code violations in March.  
 
 
•  OLD BUSINESS: Update on Tree Planting Sale:   


 
•  Kemppainen stated he picked up 25 trees from Wheeler Nursery, each priced at $22/each and stand 4-6 


feet in height. He still needs to pick up trees from McKay and there are already 25 trees planted in the 
gravel bed that could also be sold; which are much bigger. There are a total of 75 trees that will be 
available for sale. He suspects there should be a large interest in this, this year due to the March storm we 
endured. Plant sale is April 30th from 9:00am to Noon. 


 
• Update on Arbor Day school meeting: 


 
Kemppainen stated the only school that he heard back from was Fox Prairie so he has a time set up with 
them to go there on Arbor Day and talk with the kids.  


 
 







• NEW BUSINESS: Discussion of meeting day/time for future meetings: 
 


• Kemppainen stated it might be in the best interest of the Commission to change the day so that more are 
able to attend. Everyone agreed it would be helpful if the meeting was moved to the 2nd Wednesday of 
every month but remain the same time.  


 
Motion by Tangeman, seconded by Mazzone to move the meeting to the 2nd Wednesday of every month 
at 5:00pm. Motion carried 5-0 
 


• Discuss recruitment for new members of Tree Commission:  
 
Kemppainen asked for members to help recruit by word of mouth and Public Works will put some 
advertising on social media and the website. Mazzone also suggested we could make up a flyer for social 
media and/or hand them out at the Plant Sale.  


   
 
Motion by Short, seconded by Mazzone to adjourn the meeting at 5:45 p.m.  Motion carried 5-0 
 
Respectfully submitted 4/15/22, Jen Wagner -     Staff  







City of Stoughton 


Alcohol Policy Subcommittee 


Meeting notes for May 3, 2022 


 


 


The Alcohol Policy Subcommittee held its monthly meeting on Tuesday, May 3, 2022 at the EMS Training 


Room, 516 S. 4th Street, Stoughton, WI 53589.  Individuals present included: Teressa Pellett, John Basco, 


Joseph Baird, Jim Baldauf, Todd McVey and Chad O’Neil. Member Jerry Deschane was unable to attend. 


Also in attendance was Mayor Tim Swadley. 


 


 
1. Call to Order: The meeting was called to order at 2:00 pm by Subcommittee Chair 


Joseph Baird 


 OLD BUSINESS
 : No old business was discussed 


 


 NEW BUSINESS
  


2. Approval of meeting minutes 4-5-22: Motion to approve made by Jim Baldauf and 
seconded by Todd McVey. 


3. Presentation from Maureen Busalacchi, WI Alcohol Policy Project: Maureen 
provided a presentation entitled Alcohol Policy 101 with content including data 
showing the Problem of Alcohol and several strategies municipalities can use to 
strengthen the community alcohol environment. Discussion ensued including several 
questions regarding current challenges in the city and possible options the committee 
can consider.  


4. Next steps and committee roles: Jim Baldauf will share research he has gathered.  All 
members will review resources shared by Maureen Busalacchi as well as the 
Municipal Alcohol Inventory. 


5. Other items: It was agreed by the committee that future meetings will be in person at 
the EMS Training Room. 


 


FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS/Guests: Joseph Baird suggested that the topic of Operator Licensing be on the 


agenda for the June meeting.  Maureen suggested that her colleague Felice Borisy-Rudin join to share 


legal practices.  Teressa Pellett suggested that the group also begin completing the Municipal Alcohol 


Inventory as current policies are identified.  


 


6. Adjournment: Todd McVey motioned and Jim Baldauf seconded at 2:17 pm. 


Item # AGENDA 







Sustainability Committee Minutes-Monday, March 28, 2022 @ 6:00 p.m.  


The meeting of the Sustainability Committee will be conducted virtually due to COVID- 19.  


Meeting: Join Zoom Meeting: 


https://zoom.us/j/97417076778?pwd=cEhKTnFFaXpEWC9nUnRCRVY4QS9EUT09 Meeting ID: 


974 1707 6778 Passcode: 498291  


Members Present Ben Heili, Rachel Venegas, John Hallinan, Donelle Scaffidi, Jeff Leverich, Scott 


Taylor, Stephan Jackson, Yvonne Meichtry, Denise Duranczyk 


Absent and excused- Brady Troeller 


Guests- Sharon Lezberg, Michelle Probst, Mayor Swadley 


Call to Order: by Chairperson Venegas 6:00 pm 


Presentations - Sharon Lezberg, Michelle Probst UW Extension 


Communications- Alder Venegas will be going on maternity leave, Donelle will become Chair  


Approve February 28, 2022 minutes 
Motion to approve February 28, 2022 by Duranczyk, seconded by Heili  


Motion carried unanimously 


 
Discuss next steps and timeline on community survey and visioning sessions. Agreed to draft a 
resolution for ARPA funds for survey, discussed having two separate groups-Inform and 
Survey/Envisioning 
 
Provide feedback on the update of the plan-this is on hold until more information is gathered 


Set agenda for next meeting 


Inform group will meet consisting of Stephan Jackson-Chair, Yvonne Meichtry, John Hallinan, 


Donelle Scaffidi 


Survey/Envisioning group will meet consisting of Scott Taylor-Chair, Jeff Leverich, Ben Heili, 


Brady Troeller 


 


Future Agenda Items- next meeting April 25, 2022 


Review John Hallinan piece 


Adjourn-Motion to Adjourn by Jackson, seconded by Leverich 


Motion carried unanimously at 7:37 p.m. 







Sub-committee of Sustainability Committee to Discuss Public Input Gathering Strategies, April 
11th, 2022, 6:30 PM, Stoughton Public Library. 
 
Members present: Scott Taylor, Ben Heili, Jeff Leverich 
 
 
The Sustainability Committee has already agreed to the importance of 2 means of gathering 
public input: (1) a public visioning session, and (2) a survey.  
 
The sub-committee decided to recommend that the visioning session take place before 
sustainability metrics, goals and objectives are completed. That way public input gathered at 
the visioning session can be incorporate into the metrics, goals and objectives. 
 
The sub-committee decided to recommend that the survey take place after the metrics, goals 
and objectives have been drafted so that it can be a means to gauge public opinion about the 
specific metrics, goals and objectives.  
 
The sub-committee decided to recommend that we contact Sharon Lezberg of UW-Madison 
Extension to discuss how her office can assist us in design of both the visioning session and the 
survey. 
 
It is important to think about the issue of scope as we approach our public input process, 
including questions about how much we can realistically accomplish, and at what cost.   
 
It makes sense to document all that the city of Stoughton has already accomplished to provide 
a starting point for discussion with the public.   
 







Sustainability Sub-committee on Public Informing
April 11, 2022 06:00 PM - Stoughton Public Library


Meeting called to order at 6:06


Communications - Steve - attended SLC meeting and it was really informative and helpful.


Purpose of this meeting - Discuss how to inform the community about the sustainability
committee and what the city has done regarding sustainability


Ideas for how to reach the public:
Create a Sustainability page on City of Stoughton website


Social media - Community facebook pages (Stoughton neighbors,
Organizations - Sustainable Stoughton, Senior center,
Mayor - direct communications with public (coffee with the Mayor, Lion’s Club,
Library
Newspaper - Stoughton Hub (accessible to all?), Tower Times,
Video clips
WSTO TV


In-person opportunities - events (gazebo musik, syttende mai, Stoughton fair, etc.), signage


Content of information going out to public:
What has the city done regarding sustainability?


Need: Structure for how the sustainability committee will collaborate with city staff and other
committees to generate this content. Does the city have an information management system?
What is the committee’s scope?


What is the sustainability committee doing and what are our next steps?
- Consult and Involve
- Development of a Sustainability Plan with public input


* Focus area groups - what do you think is important to share with the community?


Adjourned at 7:30pm







 


Call to Order 


Chair Jenson called the meeting to order at 5:34 p.m.  Jenson, Tikalsky, Ligocki, Quam, Chief Leck and 


Mayor Swadley 


 


OLD BUSINESS 


None 


NEW BUSINESS 


Election of Chair and Vice Chair 


Tikalsky made the motion to approve Alder Jenson as Chair, second by Quam. No other motions.  


Motion carried. 


Set meeting dates and times 


 4th Wednesday of the month, 6 p.m. 


Communications  


 Chief Leck noted the retirements and positions filled 


Approval of the March 23, 2022 Public Safety Committee Minutes  


 Motion by Quam, second by Ligocki to approve the minutes with 2 grammar changes.  Motion 


carried. 


Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a Special Event License and Temporary 


Class B Beer/Wine License for Taste of Stoughton for event scheduled for June 18, 2022  


Chief Leck noted that the application had been reviewed by himself and Clerk Christen.  


Crystal Welsh noted the changes made on the map.  ID scanners will be implemented. 


Motion by Quam to recommend to Council the application of a Special Event License 


and Temporary B Beer/Wine License for Taste of Stoughton., second by Ligocki. Motion 


carried.  


 
 


FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS: none 


1. Adjournment 


  


  


Meeting of:  


Date /Time: 


Location: 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Members: 


PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 


Tuesday, April 26, 2022 @ 5:30 p.m. 
The meeting of the Public Safety Committee will be conducted as a hybrid meeting. 


(Virtual and in person) 


Virtual: You can join the meeting from your computer, tablet, or smartphone via Zoom: 


https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83839158249?pwd=K3hNR0ViRmxmclZGUFErVjBtbG85Zz09 


Meeting ID: 838 3915 8249 


Passcode: 251338 


In person: Council Chambers, (2nd Floor of Public Safety Building) 


321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin  


 


Greg Jenson (Chair), Joyce Tikalsky, Jean Ligocki, Frank Raff, Tricia Suess Charleston, Eric 


Quam and Tim Swadley (ex-officio) 


 



https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83839158249?pwd=K3hNR0ViRmxmclZGUFErVjBtbG85Zz09



		01 Finance Committee approved minutes 05-10-2022

		02 TC Min April 14, 2022

		03 Alcohol Policy Committee minutes 5-3-22

		04 Sustainability subcommittees minutes 3-28-22 and 4-11-22

		03 March minutes 3-28-22

		Sustainability Public Input Sub-committee 4-11-22 Meeting Notes

		Inform Work Group Meeting Notes - 4_11



		05 PSC minutes 4.26.22






  
 


 


 
 


 


WHEREAS, President Abraham Lincoln signed the Emancipation Proclamation on 


January 1, 1863, declaring the slaves in Confederate territory free, paving the way for 


the passing of the 13th Amendment which formally abolished slavery in the United 


States of America; and 


WHEREAS, word about the signing of the Emancipation Proclamation was delayed 


some two and one half years, to June 19, 1865, in reaching authorities and African-


Americans in the South and Southwestern United States; and 


WHEREAS, June 19th has a special meaning to African-Americans, and is called 


"JUNETEENTH" combining the words June and Nineteenth, and has been 


celebrated by the African-American community for over 157 years; and 


WHEREAS, we do not want to delay this declaration of freedom and justice any 


longer,  


THEREFORE, I, Timothy Swadley, Mayor of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, do 


hereby declare June 19, 2022 as JUNETEENTH in the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, 


and urge all citizens to become more aware and reflect on the significance of this 


celebration in African-American History and African-Americans enduring quest for 


freedom and justice in our nation and City. 


 
 
 


Dated this 14th day of June 2022. 
 
 


___________________________________ 
Tim Swadley, Mayor 


      City of Stoughton 
 








  
 


 
 
 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton Wisconsin is committed to ensuring that we are a 
welcoming, inclusive, and safe community for our Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, 
Transgender, and Queer (LGBTQ) families, friends, neighbors, and co-workers; and 
 
WHEREAS, the month of June was designated Pride Month to commemorate the 
Stonewall Riots of 1969, which is one of the major events that led to the LGBTQ 
rights movement; and  
 
WHEREAS, our LGBTQ community members contribute to the cultural fabric of 
our community, giving their time, talent, labor, and financial resources to supporting 
Stoughton; and  
 
WHEREAS, although substantial gains have been achieved, many LGBTQ 
community members face discrimination simply for being who they are and who they 
love; and 
 
WHEREAS, the struggle for dignity, equality, and LGBTQ rights continues to be 
important and necessary;  
 
THEREFORE, I, Timothy Swadley, Mayor of the City of Stoughton, do hereby 
proclaim June 2022 as Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender, Queer (LGBTQ) PRIDE 
MONTH in the City of Stoughton and affirm the City’s support and value of our 
children, adults, families, and allies of the LGBTQ community.  
 


 
 
 


Dated this 14th day of June 2022. 
 
 


___________________________________ 
Tim Swadley, Mayor 


      City of Stoughton 
 








 
Meetings of:       COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON   
Date//Time:       Tuesday, May 24, 2022, 7:00 p.m. 
Location: The meeting of the Common Council will be conducted as a hybrid meeting. (Virtual and in person) 
  Virtual: You can join the meeting from your computer, tablet, or smartphone via Zoom:  


https://zoom.us/j/99705858437?pwd=Z28rUEx6TmJzdFJVQ2VFWFJ1NlAydz09 
  Meeting ID: 997 0585 8437 


Passcode: 011582 
  In person: Council Chambers, (2nd Floor of Public Safety Building) 
           321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin   
Members:  Mayor Tim Swadley, Phil Caravello, Ben Heili, Regina Hirsch, Fred Hundt, Greg Jenson, Jean Ligocki,  
                  Tom Majewski, Lisa Reeves, Brett Schumacher, Joyce Tikalsky, Rachel Venegas, and Frank Raff 


 
CALL TO ORDER 
Mayor Swadley called the meeting to order at 7:04 p.m. 
 
Roll Call 
Clerk Christen called the roll; there were 9 Alders present.  Venegas, Reeves and Majewski absent and excused. 
 
Minutes and Reports: the following minutes were entered into the records. 
Finance (3/22/22, 4/26/22); RDA (2/24/22, 3/9/22, 4/13/22); Landmarks (4/14/22); Plan Commission (4/11/22); 
Housing Authority (7/21/21); Public Safety (3/23/22); Public Works (4/21/22) 
  
Public Comment Period: 
None  


 
Communications and Presentations: 


• EMS Week Proclamation – Mayor Swadley recognized EMS Week 
• Alder Jenson recognized Chief Leck’s announcement of retirement and congratulated him on a job well 


done. 
• Update re Debt Issue 2022A bid results authorized per R-76-2022 Parameters Resolution--Director 


Ehlinger summarized the issuance of bonds. 
• ARPA update--Director Ehlinger presented a Power Point and potential dates for COW meetings. 


 
5. Consent Agenda: 
 A.  Council Minutes - May 10, 2022 


B.  R-111-2022 Resolution confirming the Mayor's Committee Appointments to Boards, Committees, and 
Commissions, Pursuant to 2-127 of the Municipal Code. 


 C.  R-112-2022 Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to issue Operator licenses to various 
 applicants. 


D. Minutes of the April 18, 2022 & May 4, 2022 Regular Utilities Committee Meeting, Stoughton 
Utilities Payments due List Report, Stoughton Utilities March Financial Summary, Stoughton Utilities 
Financial Summary, Stoughton Utilities Statistical Report 


Motion by Jenson, second by Hundt to approve the consent agenda.  Motion carried 9-0. 
  
OLD BUSINESS  
None 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 



https://zoom.us/j/99705858437?pwd=Z28rUEx6TmJzdFJVQ2VFWFJ1NlAydz09





R-113-2022 Authorizing the Release of a Platted Public Utility Easement on Lot 8 of Greig Addition to Norse 
View Heights (1617 Johnson St), recorded as Document No. 2038870, Dane County Registry.  
 
Motion by Hundt, second by Jenson to approve R-113-2022 Authorizing the Release of a Platted Public Utility 
Easement on Lot 8 of Greig Addition to Norse View Heights (1617 Johnson St), recorded as Document No. 
2038870, Dane County Registry. Motion carried 9-0. 
 
R-114-2022 First Amendment to Agreement to Undertake Development with R.O.B. Real Estate Brokerage and 
Builders, LLC for Parker Cole Addition 
 
Motion by Schumacher, second by Jenson to approve R-114-2022 First Amendment to Agreement to Undertake 
Development with R.O.B. Real Estate Brokerage and Builders, LLC for Parker Cole Addition. Motion carried 
9-0.    
 
R-115-2022 Resolution authorizing the use of ARPA funds for the Innovation Center.  
 
Motion by Hundt, second by Schumacher to approve R- 115-2022 Resolution authorizing the use of ARPA 
funds for the Innovation Center with the assignment of committed funds to be $125,000 not $250,000. Motion 
carried 8-1, Ligocki opposed. 
 
R-116-2022 Authorizing and directing the Director of Public Works to submit an application to the Greater 
Madison Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) for Surface Transportation Block Grant (STBG) – Urban 
funding for projects using Federal Fiscal Year 2023-2026 funding under the new Infrastructure Investment & 
Jobs Act (IIJA), also known as the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law (BIL) (BIL).  


Motion by Hundt, second by Ligocki to R-116-2022 Authorizing and directing the Director of Public Works to 
submit an application to the Greater Madison Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) for Surface 
Transportation Block Grant (STBG) – Urban funding for projects using Federal Fiscal Year 2023-2026 funding 
under the new Infrastructure Investment & Jobs Act (IIJA), also known as the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law 
(BIL) (BIL). Motion carried 9-0. 


Attorney Dregne explained the following 4 items and the legal basis for closed session per the State Statutes.   


Motion by Schumacher, second by Jenson to go to closed session per Wis. State Statutes 19.85 (1)(e) 
Deliberating or negotiating the purchasing of public properties, the investing of public funds, or conducting 
other specified public business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons and 19.85 (1)(g) Conferring with 
legal counsel for the governmental body who is rendering oral or written advice concerning strategy to be 
adopted by the body with respect to litigation in which it is or is likely to become involved.  Roll call vote was 
taken and motion carried 9-0. 8:24 p.m. 


R-117-2022 Resolution refunding escrow for the purchase of Lot 4 of CSM No 15363 located in the City of 
Stoughton 
    
Discussion and possible action regarding legal fees charged to 51 West Developer 
 
Discussion regarding Hilton Tru 2021 Assessment claim  
 
Litigation regarding North American Fur Auctions (US) Inc. and NAFA Properties Stoughton, LLC 


Motion by Jenson, second by Schumacher to return to open session from closed session.  Motion carried 9-0. 
9:35 p.m. 







Motion by Schumacher, second by Jenson to refund to Kevin Whitford $2,275.50 (escrow deposit of $5,000 
less the legal fees incurred of $2,724.50).   If application for purchase of the same property is re-submitted then 
the legal fees would be applied to the escrow.  Attorney Dregne added language and it is underlined in the 
resolution. Motion carried 9-0. 


ADJOURNMENT 
Motion by Jenson, second by Hundt to adjourn.  Motion carried 9-0. 9:35 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Candee Christen, 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
         
 


 
 








RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Confirming the Mayor’s Citizen Appointments to Boards, Committees, and Commissions, Pursuant to 
2-127 of the Municipal Code.


Committee Action: N/A 
Fiscal Impact: $-0- 


File Number: R-118-2022 Date Introduced:  June 14, 2022 


WHEREAS, the Mayor has submitted citizen appointment for standing boards, committees, and 
commissions for the 2022-2023 term; and 


WHEREAS, the appointment is as follows: 


Therefore, 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) 
c o n f i  r m  t  h e  M  a  y o  r ’ s  c i  t  i  z  e n  a p p o i  n t  m e n t  t o  n o n -standing b o a r d s  , c  o m m  i t t  e  e  s  , and 
commissions. 


Council Action:  Adopted  Failed  Vote   _ _


Mayoral Action: Accept           Veto 


Tim Swadley, Mayor  Date 


Council Action:  Override  Vote 


Finance


Leonard "Ozzie" Doom















 











CITY OF STOUGHTON COMMON COUNCIL 


Application for Appointment to City Boards/Commission/Committees 


If you are interested in serving the community as a committee member, please complete this 


application form and return it by email to the City Clerk: hlicht@ci.stoughton.wi.us or you can 


mail it to City Hall Attn: City Clerk, 207 S. Forrest St., Stoughton, WI 53589.  Committee 


applications are kept on file and reviewed as necessary to fill vacancies. If you have additional 


questions, please contact City Hall at 608-873-6677 or email Holly Licht at the email listed above. 


Thank you for your interest! 


Name: 


Street Address: 


City: State: Zip Code: 


Phone #: Email: 


Aldermanic District (You can find your district by going to myvote.wi.gov): 


Choose a Committee(s) 


__ Ad Hoc Whitewater Steering Committee 


__ Arts Council  


__ Board of Appeals 


__ Business Park North Committee  


__ Cemetery Board  


__ Commission on Aging  


__ Community Affairs/Council Policy (CACP) 


__ Finance Committee   


__ Food Pantry Committee  


__ Housing Authority  


__ Landmarks Commission  


__ Library Board  


__ Opera House Board 


__ Parks & Rec Committee 


__ Plan Commission  


__ Public Safety Committee  


__ Public Works Committee  


__ Police & Fire Commission  


__ Redevelopment Authority  


__ Rivers & trails Task Force  


__ Seniors In Need Committee  


__ Tree Commission 


__ Utilities Committee  


___ Other (please specify): _____________ 


Background (related experiences, skills or qualifications). You may also attach your resume: 


Why you are interested in this committee(s): 


Kurt Byfield


408 W Prospect Street


Stoughton WI 53589


608-712-9510 Kbyfield@charter.net


District #1


X


I have nearly 30 years of experience working for the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources, and am 
currently a Grant Project Manager covering the motorized recreational trail needs of 31 counties with over 
7,700 miles of trail in Southern and West Central Wisconsin.    I work with Snowmobile, ATV, UTV and Off 
Highway Motorcycle trails and have recently begun working with the Federal Recreational Trails Program 
(RTP).   While my work is focused on motorized recreation, I feel there’s significant overlap between the 
motorized and non-motorized worlds.    



mailto:hlicht@ci.stoughton.wi.us





I am an avid cyclist, covering over 4,000 per year on both road and trail.   Last year I rode the trails in 
Stoughton for over 600 miles and would like the opportunity to give something back to the system that I 
enjoy so much.   Thru my position with the DNR, I’m exposed to a wide of trail systems and outdoor 
opportunities and I find myself wondering how those could be incorporated into the area around Stoughton.   
And as I ride, I often find myself looking for ways that the trails could be improved or places where new trial 
systems could be introduced to the city and made available for all residents to enjoy.  I figure the best way to 
implement ideas is to participate in the process.





























		05c  R-99-2022 Resolution confirming the Mayor’s Committee Appointments to Boards, Committees, and Commissions

		05c  R-81-2022 Resolution confirming the Mayor’s Committee Appointments to Boards, Committees, and Commissions

		05d Verstegen application for Stoughton DEI TF

		05e Etahn Scheiwe

		05f Jen Cummings

		05-Kurt Byfield



		05c David Pluymers RDA Application 2022 04 27

		05c Sustainability committee application










 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to issue Operator Licenses to various applicants. 


 
Committee 


 


 
N/A 


Fiscal Impact: N/A 


 
File Number: R-119-2022 


 
Date Introduced:   June 14, 2022 


 
WHEREAS the City Clerk’s office has received an application for an Operator’s License from 
the following applicants: 
 


Name      Place of Business 
  Jennifer Jones     Stoughton BP 
  Belinda Suby     Stoughton BP  
  Eric Michaelis     Pick N Save 
  Raymond Perkins    Pick N Save  
  Debra Vesterdahl    VFW 
  Sally Schieldt     American Legion Post 59 
  Jill Clark      Kwik Trip #738 
  Kerry Enger     Cheeser’s 
  Lydia Ganser     Food Pantry  
  Chanel Coleman    Kwik Trip #967 
  Natasha Shields-Warner   Koffee Kup 
  Shey Mitchell     Whatever Bar 
  Jonah Day     Pick N Save  
  Holly Brickson    Viking Brew Pub 
  Jason Kingston    Pick N Save 
  Nicholas Hanson    Viking Brew Pub    
  Kenneth Kidder    Viking Lanes 
  Dana Mueller     Walmart 
  Dakota Witt     Stoughton BP 
  Kailani Wolfe     Koffee Kup 
  Justin Stevens     Pick N Save 
  Francis Furillo     Pick N Save 
  Nadine Majewski    Kwik Trip #893 
  Julie Kalagian     Kwik Trip #893 
  Karen Backes     Kwik Trip #893 
  Leland Hack      Kwik Trip #893 
  Charles Ree     Kwik Trip #893 







   
 


Sandy Hetzel      Kwik Trip #893 
  Alex Grady     Kwik Trip #893 
  Clark Fox     Kwik Trip #893 
  Mackenzie Wornson    Kwik Trip #893 
  Grace Ott     Kwik Trip #893 
  Zachary Dalsoren    Kwik Trip #893 
  Kathryn Davis     Kwik Trip #893 
  Isaiah Rowley     Kwik Trip #893 
  Reyna Gonzalez    Kwik Trip #893 
  Chase Murphy     Kwik Trip #893 
  Brenda True     Kwik Trip  
  Julie Stenjem     American Legion Post 59 
  Sukhraj Bharya    Best Plaza Liquor 
   
   
   
 
WHEREAS, the Police Chief and City Clerk have reviewed and approved the issuance of an 
Operator Licenses to said applicants, now therefore 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city 
official(s) be hereby authorized and directed to issue Operator Licenses to the above named 
applicants. 
 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     
 
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
 
 
                                           
Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 


 
 
Council Action:           Override  Vote     
 
 
 








WHEREAS the City Clerk’s office has received applications for Liquor License renewals for the 
period of July 1, 2022, to June 30, 2023, for the businesses: 


Combination “Class A” Liquor & Class “A” Fermented Malt Beverage: 
Bottled Pleasure, Inc., Robert D Savaske Jr, Agent, dba Stoughton Spirits, 965 N. Page Street. 
Becco, Inc, Sukhraj Bharya, Agent, dba Best Plaza Liquor, 1056 W. Main Street. 
Ultra Mart Foods LLC, Tamera Braxton, Agent dba Pick 'N Save #6390, 1750 Hwy 51/138 
Wal-Mart Stores East, LP, Terra Hanson, Agent dba Wal-Mart Store #1176, 2600 Hwy 138 
Aldi, Inc., Shari Schloemer, Agent dba Aldi #05, 1399 US HWY 51 
KPW Hospitality, LLC, Jacqueline Larson, Agent, Tru by Hilton, 2500 Jackson St. 


Class “A” Liquor 
Ashlies LLC, Ashley Kirch, Agent dba Ashlie’s, 217 S. Fourth St. 


Class “A” Fermented Malt Beverage: 
Jagat Petroleum, LLC, Gurinderdeep S Dhillon, dba Stoughton BP, 1009 W. Main Street 
Diamond Jubilee, Inc., Mirza Akhtar Baig, Agent, dba Food Pantry, 981 N. Page Street 
Walgreen Corporation, Jaqueline Shaffer, Agent dba Walgreen’s #07519, 1705 US Hwy 51. 
Kwik Trip, Inc., Jennifer Wentela, Agent, dba Kwik Trip #738, 1231 E. Main Street 
Kwik Trip, Inc., Brett Decker, Agent, dba Kwik Trip #739, 517 W. Main Street  
Kwik Trip, Inc., Breonna Pitera, Agent, dba Kwik Trip #893, 1359 US HWY 51 
Kwik Trip, Inc., Michael Laures, Agent, dba Kwik Trip Store #967, 2400 Roby Road  


Combination “Class B” Liquor & Class “B” Fermented Malt Beverage: 
Amovi Ventures, LLC, Wendy Brigham, Agent, dba Banushi’s Bar & Grill, 800 Nygaard Street 
Laz Bistro & Bar LLC, Cary Lazzaro, Agent, dba Laz Bistro & Bar, 419 E. Main Street 
The Koffee Kup Restaurant LLC, Patricia Gulseth, Agent, dba The Koffee Kup Restaurant, 
355 E. Main Street 
Mandt Community Center, Inc, Bart Quale, Agent, dba Mandt Community Center, 400 Mandt 
Parkway 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Fiscal Impact: Class A Beer=$100; Class A Liquor=$500; Class B Beer & Liquor=$600; Class 
C Wine=$100; Publication fee=$20 


File Number: R-120-2022 Date Introduced: May 25, 2022 


Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the Liquor License renewals for the 
period of July 1, 2022, to June 30, 2023. 


Committee Action: Public Safety Committee recommended approval   6  -   0   on May 25, 2022 


    


  


   


 
Claa







Lynn M. Hull dba Never Mind, 201 S Sixth Street 
Nel-Car Corporation, Robert Bloxham, Agent, dba Viking Lanes, 1410 Hwy 51/138 
Danny K. Aaberg dba Whatever, 508 E. Main Street 
Fire & Eis, LLC, Agent Scott Sowlles, dba Fahrenheit 364, 364 E. Main St 
Deak’s Pub & Grill, LLC, Jamie D. Bush, Agent, dba Deak’s Pub & Grill, 1017 Nygaard Street 
Famous Yeti’s LLC, Cale J. Ryan, Agent, dba Wendigo Tavern, 121 E. Main Street 
Viking Brew Pub LLC, Vik Malling, Agent, dba Viking Brew Pub, 211 E. Main Street 
Working Title, LLC, Patti Cross, Agent dba Water Street Tavern 324 S Water Street 
Tailgaters of Stoughton, LLC, Chad Strutzel, Agent dba Tailgaters, 151 E. Main Street 
Brown Wood, LLC., Trisha Brown, Agent dba Roxy’s Restobar, 208 W Main Street 
Pamela Kosanovich, Agent, dba Argot Craft Tavern 317 S. Division St. 
Stoughton VFW Post 328, Jean Torgeson, Agent dba VFW Mother Post 328 200 Veterans 
Rd 


Combination Reserve “Class B” Liquor & Class “B” Fermented Malt Beverage: 
El Rio Grande Restaurant LLC, Erika Cervantes, Agent dba El Rio Grande Restaurant, 524 W. 
Main Street 
American Legion Post 59, Michael Currie, Agent, dba American Legion Post 59, 803 N Page St. 
J&S Nordic Enterprises, LLC, Brian Johnson, Agent, dba Cheesers, 183 E Main St. 
Drikke LLC, Jamae Ramsden, Agent, dba The Lageret, 515 East Main St. 
La Cantina, LLC, Lourdes Aranda, Agent, dba La Cantina, 620 Nygaard St. 


Class “B” Fermented Malt Beverage: 
Pizza Hut of Madison, Inc., Christopher Tyrrell, Agent, dba Pizza Hut, 1424 Hwy 51/138 
Famous Yeti’s LLC, Caitlin Ryan, Agent, dba Famous Yeti’s Pizza, 971 N. Page Street. 
Big Sky, LLC, Sean Crowley, Agent, dba Big Sky Restaurant, 176 E. Main Street 
Gemini Games, LLC, Brianna Fero, Agent, dba, Gemini Games, 193 W Main St. 
Stoughton Opera House Friends Association, Eric Francksen, Agent, dba Stoughton 
Opera House, 381 E. Main St. 
Bear Arms Performing Arts Center LLC, Jordan Tilleson, Agent, dba Bear Arms 
Performing Arts Center, 384 E. Main St. 
 
 
Class “C” Wine: 
Pizza Hut of Madison, Inc., Jasper L. Meeker, Agent, dba Pizza Hut, 1424 Hwy 
51/138 
 Big Sky, LLC, Sean Crowley, Agent, dba Big Sky Restaurant, 176 E. Main Street 


“Class B” Winery License: 
Mershonian Cidery, LLC, Joseph Baird, Agent, dba Mershon’s Cidery, 124 W. Main St. 


   


 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 












NOTICE 
 


APPLICATIONS FOR ALCOHOL BEVERAGE LICENSE 
YEAR 2022-2023 


(July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023) 
 


City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 
 


Please take notice that the following retailers have applied for alcohol beverage licenses 
within the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin. The Public Safety Committee 
met to consider application recommendations to the Common Council on Wednesday, 
May 25, 2022. The City Council will consider the applications at the Regular Council 
Meeting scheduled for Tuesday, June 14, 2022 at 7 p.m. or as soon thereafter as the 
matter may be heard. 
 
 
BOTTLED PLEASURE, INC., ROBERT D SAVASKE JR,  AGENT dba 
STOUGHTON SPIRITS, located at 965 N PAGE STREET, has applied for a “Class A” 
Liquor and Class “A” Fermented Malt Beverage License. 
 
BECCO INC., SUKHRAJ BHARYA, AGENT dba Best PLAZA LIQUOR, located 
at 1056 W MAIN STREET, has applied for a “Class A” Liquor and Class “A” Fermented 
Malt Beverage License. 
 
ULTRA MART FOODS, LLC, TAMERA BRAXTON , AGENT dba PICK 'N 
SAVE #6390, located at 1750 HWY 51/138 has applied for a “Class A” Liquor and Class 
“A” Fermented Malt Beverage License. 
 
WAL-MART STORES EAST, LP, TERRA HANSON, AGENT dba WAL-MART 
STORE #1176, located at 2600 HWY 138, has applied for a “Class A” Liquor and Class  
“A” Fermented Malt Beverage License. 
 
ALDI, INC., SHARI SCHLOEMER, AGENT dba ALDI #05, located at 1399 US 
HWY 51, has applied for a “Class A” Liquor and Class “A” Fermented Malt Beverage 
License. 
 
KPW HOSPITALITY, LLC, JACQUELINE LARSON, AGENT, dba Tru by 
Hilton, located at 2500 JACKSON ST. has applied for a “Class A” Liquor License and a 
Class “A” Fermented Malt Beverage License. 
 
ASHLIES LLC, ASHLEY KIRCH, AGENT. Dba Ashlie’s, located at 217 S. 
FOURTH ST. has applied for a Class “A” Liquor License 
 
 
 
 







JAGAT PETROLEUM, LLC, GURINDERDEEP SINGH DHILLON, AGENT dba 
JP MARKET, located at 1009 W MAIN STREET, has applied for a Class “A" 
Fermented Malt Beverage License.  
 
DIAMOND JUBILEE, INC., MIRZA AKHTAR BAIG, AGENT dba FOOD 
PANTRY, located at 981 N PAGE STREET, has applied for a Class “A" Fermented 
Malt Beverage License. 
 
WALGREEN CORPORATION, JAQUELINE SHAFFER, AGENT dba 
WALGREEN’S #07519, located at 1705 US HWY 51, has applied for a Class “A" 
Fermented Malt Beverage License. 
 
KWIK TRIP, INC., JENNIFER WENTELA, AGENT dba KWIK TRIP #738, 
located at 1231 E MAIN STREET, has applied for a Class “A" Fermented Malt Beverage 
License. 
 
KWIK TRIP, INC.,  BRETT DECKER, AGENT dba KWIK TRIP #739, located at 
517 W MAIN STREET, has applied for a Class “A" Fermented Malt Beverage License. 
 
KWIK TRIP, INC., BREONNA PITERA, AGENT dba KWIK TRIP #893, located 
at 1359 US HWY 51, has applied for a Class “A" Fermented Malt Beverage License. 
 
KWIK TRIP, INC., MICHAEL LAURES, AGENT dba KWIK TRIP #967, located 
at 2400 ROBY ROAD, has applied for a Class “A" Fermented Malt Beverage License. 
 
AMOVI VENTURES, LLC, WENDY BRIGHAM, AGENT dba BANUSHI’S BAR 
& GRILL, located at 800 NYGAARD STREET, has applied for a “Class B” Liquor and 
Class “B” Fermented Malt Beverage License. 
 
LAZ BISTRO & BAR, LLC, CARY R. LAZZARO, AGENT dba LAZ BISTRO & 
BAR, located at 419 E MAIN STREET, has applied for a “Class B” Liquor and Class 
“B” Fermented Malt Beverage License. 
 
THE KOFFEE KUP RESTAURANT LLC., KENDALL L. GULSETH, AGENT 
dba THE KOFFEE KUP RESTAURANT, located at 355 E MAIN STREET, has 
applied for a “Class B” Liquor and Class “B” Fermented Malt Beverage License. 
 
MANDT COMMUNITY CENTER, INC., BART M QUALE , AGENT dba 
MANDT COMMUNITY CENTER, located at 400 MANDT PARKWAY, has applied 
for a “Class B” Liquor and Class “B” Fermented Malt Beverage License. 
 
LYNN M, HULL,  dba NEVER MIND, located at 201 S SIXTH STREET, has  
applied for a “Class B” Liquor and Class “B” Fermented Malt Beverage License. 
 
 







NEL-CAR CORPORATION, ROBERT BLOXHAM, AGENT dba VIKING 
LANES, located at 1410 HWY 51/138, has applied for a “Class B” Liquor and Class “B” 
Fermented Malt Beverage License. 
 
DANNY K. AABERG dba WHATEVER, located at 508 E MAIN ST., has applied for 
a “Class B” Liquor and Class “B” Fermented Malt Beverage License. 
 
FIRE & EIS, LLC, SCOTT SOWLLES, AGENT dba FAHRENHEIT 364. located at 
364 E MAIN ST., has applied for a “Class B” Liquor and Class “B” Fermented Malt 
Beverage License. 
 
DEAK’S PUB & GRILL, LLC, JAIME D. BUSH, AGENT dba DEAK’S PUB & 
GRILL, located at 1017 NYGAARD STREET, has applied for a “Class B” Liquor and 
Class “B” Fermented Malt Beverage License. 
 
FAMOUS YETI’S, LLC, CALE RYAN, AGENT, dba WENDIGO TAVERN located 
at 121 E MAIN STREET, has applied for a “Class B” Liquor and Class “B” Fermented 
Malt Beverage License. 
 
VIKING BREW PUB, LLC, VIK MALLING, AGENT, dba VIKING BREW PUB 
located at 211 E MAIN STREET, has applied for a “Class B” Liquor and Class “B” 
Fermented Malt Beverage License. 
 
WORKING TITLE, LLC, BENJAMIN ALTSCHUL, AGENT, dba WATER 
STREET TAVERN, located at 324 S. WATER ST. has applied for a “Class B” Liquor 
and Class “B” Fermented Malt Beverage License. 
 
TAILGATERS OF STOUGHTON, LLC, CHAD STRUTZEL, AGENT, dba 
TAILGATERS located at 151 E. MAIN ST., has applied for a “Class B” Liquor and 
Class “B” Fermented Malt Beverage License. 
 
BROWN WOOD, LLC, TRISHA BROWN, AGENT, dba ROXY’S RESTOBAR, 
located at 208 W. MAIN ST. has applied for “Class B” Liquor License and Class “B” 
Fermented Malt Beverage 
 
PAMELA KOSANOVICH, dba ARGOT CRAFT TAVERN, located at 317 S. 
DIVISION ST. has applied for a “Class B” Liquor and Class “B” Fermented Malt 
Beverage License. 


VFW BADGER POST 328 INC, JEAN TORGENSON, AGENT, dba VFW 
BADGER POST 328, located at 200 S VETERANS ROAD, has applied for a “Class B” 
Liquor and Class “B” Fermented Malt Beverage License. 
 
 
 
 







EL RIO GRANDE RESTAURANT LLC, ERIKA CERVANTES, AGENT dba EL 
RIO GRANDE RESTAURANT, located at 524 WEST MAIN STREET, has applied for 
a Reserve "Class B" Liquor license and Class "B" Fermented Malt Beverage. 
 
AMERICAN LEGION POST 59, MICHAEL CURRIE, AGENT, dba AMERICAN 
LEGION POST 59. located at 803 N. PAGE ST, has applied for a  
Reserve “Class B” Liquor license and Class “B” Fermented Malt Beverage. 
 
J&S NORDIC ENTERPRISES, LLC, BRIAN JOHNSON, AGENT, dba 
CHEESERS LOKAL MARKET, located at 183 E MAIN ST., has applied for a 
Reserve “Class B” Liquor License and a Class “B” Fermented Malt Beverage License 
 
DRIKKE, LLC, JAMAE RAMSDEN, AGENT dba THE LAGARET, located at 515 
EAST MAIN ST. has applied for a Reserve “Class B” Liquor License and a Class “B” 
Fermented Malt Beverage License. 
 
LA CANTINA, LLC, LOURDES ARANDA, AGENT, dba LA CATINA, located at 
620 NYGAARD ST., has applied for a Reserve “Class B” Liquor License and a Class 
“B” Fermented Malt Beverage License  
 
PIZZA HUT OF MADISON, INC., JASPER MEEKER, AGENT dba PIZZA HUT, 
located at 1424 HWY 51/138, has applied for a Class “B” Fermented Malt Beverage and 
Class “C” Wine license. 
 
FAMOUS YETI’S LLC, CAITLIN RYAN, AGENT, dba FAMOUS YETI’S 
PIZZA, located at 971 N. PAGE ST., has applied for a Class “B” Fermented Malt 
Beverage license. 
 
BIG SKY LLC, SEAN CROWLEY, AGENT dba BIG SKY RESTAURANT, located 
at 176 E MAIN ST., has applied for a Class “B” Fermented Malt Beverage and Class “C” 
Wine license. 
 
GEMINI GAMES, LLC, BRIANNA FERO, AGENT, dba GEMINI GAMES, 
located at 193 W MAIN ST., has applied for a Class “B” Fermented Malt Beverage 
License  
 
MERSHONIAN CIDERY LLC, JOSEPH BAIRD, dba MERSHON’S CIDERY, 
located at 124 W. MAIN ST., has applied for a “Class B” Winery License. 
 
STOUGHTON OPERA HOUSE FRIENDS ASSOCIATION, ERIS FRANCKSEN, 
AGENT, dba STOUGHTON OPERA HOUSE located at 381 E. MAIN ST., has 
applied for a Class “B” Fermented Malt Beverage License. 
 
BEAR ARMS PERFORMING ARTS CENTER LLC, JORDAN TILLESON, 
AGENT, dba BEAR ARMS PERFORMING ARTS CENTER, located at 384 E. 
MAIN ST., has applied for a Class “B” Fermented Malt Beverage License. 







STOUGHTON MERCHANTS BASEBALL, BRETT KITZKE, AGENT, located at  
600 KREIDEMAN DR., has applied for a 6 month Class “B” Fermented Malt Beverage 
License. 
 
 
Submitted by: Candee Christen, City Clerk  
Published June 2, 2022 Stoughton Courier Hub







 


 








RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the Outdoor Consumption Permits for 


the period of July 1, 2022, to June 30, 2023.


Committee Action: 


Fiscal Impact: 


Public Safety Committee recommends approval 6-0 on May 25, 2022
 None 


File Number: Date Introduced: June 14, 2022


WHEREAS the City Clerk’s office has received applications for Outdoor Consumption Permits 


for the period of July 1, 2022, to June 30, 2023, for the businesses:


Amovi Ventures, Wendy Brigham, Agent, dba Banushi’s Bar & Grill, 800 Nygaard Street 


VFW Badger Post 328, Jean Torgerson, Agent, dba VFW Badger Post 328, 200 S. Veterans Rd. 
Nel-Car Corporation, Robert Bloxham, Agent, dba Viking Lanes, 1410 Hwy 51/138 


Deak’s Pub & Grill, LLC, Jamie D. Bush, Agent, dba Deak’s Pub & Grill, 1017 Nygaard Street


Working Title, LLC, Benjamin Altschul, Agent dba Water Street Tavern, 324 S Water Street


La Cantina, LLC,Lourdes Aranda, Agent dba La Cantina, 620 Nygard St.
American Legion Post 59, Elvin Swangstu, Agent, dba American Legion Post 59, 803 N Page St.


WHEREAS, your Public Safety Committee met on May 25, 2022 to consider the terms of the 
Outdoor Consumption Permit applications and, upon advisement from the Police 


Chief, recommends approval; now therefore  


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city 


official(s) be hereby authorized and directed to issue the Outdoor Consumption Permits to the 


aforementioned applicants. 


Council Action:        Adopted    Failed Vote 


Mayoral Action:       Accept    Veto 


Tim Swadley, Mayor Date 


Council Action:        Override Vote 


R-121-2022








NOTICE 
 


APPLICATIONS FOR OUTDOOR CONSUMPTION AREA AND SIDEWALK CAFE 
PERMITS 


YEAR 2022-2023 
(July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023) 


 
City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 


 
Please take notice that the following retailers have applied for outdoor consumption area and 
sidewalk café permits within the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin. The Public Safety 
Committee met to consider application recommendations to the Common Council on 
Wednesday, May 25, 2022. The City Council will consider the applications at the Regular 
Council Meeting scheduled for Tuesday, June 14, 2022 at 7 p.m. or as soon thereafter as the 
matter may be heard. 
 
Outdoor Consumption Permit 
Amovi Ventures, Wendy Brigham, Agent, dba Banushi’s Bar & Grill, 800 Nygaard Street  
VFW Badger Post 328, Jean Torgerson, Agent, dba VFW Badger Post 328, 200 S. Veterans Rd.  
Nel-Car Corporation, Robert Bloxham, Agent, dba Viking Lanes, 1410 Hwy 51/138  
Deak’s Pub & Grill, LLC, Jamie D. Bush, Agent, dba Deak’s Pub & Grill, 1017 Nygaard Street 
Working Title, LLC, Benjamin Altschul, Agent dba Water Street Tavern, 324 S Water Street 
La Cantina, LLC,Lourdes Aranda, Agent dba La Cantina, 620 Nygard St. 
American Legion Post 59, Elvin Swangstu, Agent, dba American Legion Post 59, 803 N Page 
St. 
 
Sidewalk Café Permit 
Viking Brew Pub LLC, Vik Malling, Agent, dba Viking Brew Pub, 211 E. Main St. 
Mershonian Cidery LLC, Joseph Baird, Agent, dba Mershon’s Cidery, 124 W. Main St. 
Fire & Eis LLC, Scott Sowles, Agent, dba Fahrenheit 364, 364 E. Main St. 
Famous Yeti’s LLC, Caitlyn Ryan, Agent, dba Wendigo Tavern, 121 E. Main St. 
 


Candee Christen, City Clerk 
Published June 2, 2022 








RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the Sidewalk Cafe Permits for the


period of July 1, 2022, to June 30, 2023.


Committee Action: 


Fiscal Impact: 


Public Safety Committee 


 None 


File Number: Date Introduced: June 14, 2022


WHEREAS the City Clerk’s office has received applications for Sidewalk Cafe Permits for the 
period of July 1, 2022, to June 30, 2023, for the businesses:


VIKING BREW PUB LLC, VIK MALLING, AGENT, dba Viking Brew Pub, 211 E. Main St.


MERSHONIAN CIDERY LLC, JOSEPH BAIRD, AGENT, dba Mershon’s Cidery, 124 W. 
Main St.


FIRE & EIS LLC, SCOTT SOWLLES, AGENT, dba Fahrenheit 364, 364 E. Main St.


FAMOUS YETI’S LLC, CAITLIN RYAN, AGENT, dba Wendigo Tavern, 121 E. Main St.


WHEREAS, your Public Safety Committee met on May 25, 2022 to consider the terms of the 
Sidewalk Cafe applications and, upon advisement from the Police Chief, recommends 
approval; now therefore  


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city 


official(s) be hereby authorized and directed to issue the Sidewalk Cafe Permits to the 
aforementioned applicants. 


Council Action:        Adopted    Failed Vote 


Mayoral Action:       Accept    Veto 


Tim Swadley, Mayor Date 


Council Action:        Override Vote 


recommends approval 6-0 on May 25, 2022


R-122-2022








NOTICE 
 


APPLICATIONS FOR OUTDOOR CONSUMPTION AREA AND SIDEWALK CAFE 
PERMITS 


YEAR 2022-2023 
(July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023) 


 
City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 


 
Please take notice that the following retailers have applied for outdoor consumption area and 
sidewalk café permits within the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin. The Public Safety 
Committee met to consider application recommendations to the Common Council on 
Wednesday, May 25, 2022. The City Council will consider the applications at the Regular 
Council Meeting scheduled for Tuesday, June 14, 2022 at 7 p.m. or as soon thereafter as the 
matter may be heard. 
 
Outdoor Consumption Permit 
Amovi Ventures, Wendy Brigham, Agent, dba Banushi’s Bar & Grill, 800 Nygaard Street  
VFW Badger Post 328, Jean Torgerson, Agent, dba VFW Badger Post 328, 200 S. Veterans Rd.  
Nel-Car Corporation, Robert Bloxham, Agent, dba Viking Lanes, 1410 Hwy 51/138  
Deak’s Pub & Grill, LLC, Jamie D. Bush, Agent, dba Deak’s Pub & Grill, 1017 Nygaard Street 
Working Title, LLC, Benjamin Altschul, Agent dba Water Street Tavern, 324 S Water Street 
La Cantina, LLC,Lourdes Aranda, Agent dba La Cantina, 620 Nygard St. 
American Legion Post 59, Elvin Swangstu, Agent, dba American Legion Post 59, 803 N Page 
St. 
 
Sidewalk Café Permit 
Viking Brew Pub LLC, Vik Malling, Agent, dba Viking Brew Pub, 211 E. Main St. 
Mershonian Cidery LLC, Joseph Baird, Agent, dba Mershon’s Cidery, 124 W. Main St. 
Fire & Eis LLC, Scott Sowles, Agent, dba Fahrenheit 364, 364 E. Main St. 
Famous Yeti’s LLC, Caitlyn Ryan, Agent, dba Wendigo Tavern, 121 E. Main St. 
 


Candee Christen, City Clerk 
Published June 2, 2022 








CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S, FORREST STREET, STOUGHTON WI 53589  
 


 
RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve a Temporary Class “B”/Class “B” 
Retailer’s License and Special Event License to the Stoughton Opera House Friends Association  
 
Committee Action: 


 
Public Safety Committee approved 6-0 on May 25, 20122  


Fiscal Impact: None 
 
File Number: 


 
R-123-2022 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
June 14, 2022 


 
WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City to approve an Application for a Temporary Class 
“B”/Class “B” Retailer’s License and a Special Event License to the Stoughton Opera House 
Friends Association for the Catfish River Music Festival   
 
WHEREAS, your Public Safety Committee met on May 25, 2022 to consider the terms of the 
Application for a Temporary Class “B”/Class “B” Retailer’s License and a Special Event License, 
and recommends approval, now therefore 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city 
official(s) be hereby directed and authorized to execute the Temporary Class “B”/Class “B” 
Retailer’s License and a Special Event License based on no fines or fees due to the City of 
Stoughton, attached hereto and incorporated as part of this resolution, between the City of 
Stoughton and the Stoughton Opera House Friends Association  
 
 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     
 
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
 
 
                                             
Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 


 
 


 
 
Council Action:           Override  Vote     
 
 
 







 William Brehm 
 Director 
 Stoughton Opera House 
 Board Member SOHFA 
 May 18, 2022 


2022 Catfish River Music Festival  


Application & Permit Packet 


The 2022 Catfish River Music Festival is set to take place July 2nd - July 4th and will be the 
somethingth annual (7th) Stoughton Opera House fundraising event. The event will feature live 
music at the Rotary Park gazebo. A modest number of spaces will be made available for arts 
vendors (8-10) and food carts (3-5). Additionally, the Opera House is supporting the application 


1







by the Stoughton Opera House Friends Association (SOHFA) for a temporary class B license to 
sell beer and wine during this event.



A street closing application has been filed for this event and a copy has been included here for 
your convenience. While the boundaries of activities in the street for this event will not extend 
beyond the corner of 6th and Jefferson, the street closing extends a block in either direction. 
Barricades and “No Through Traffic” signage will be placed at the intersection of Jefferson and 
7th as well as 6th and South St. Final approval is pending receipt of signatures from neighbors.



While this is a free outdoor event, the entire event area will be enclosed with temporary fencing.  
There will be three gateway points for entry into and exit from the event area. Signage, trash 
barrels, and event staff will be positioned at each of these points to ensure compliance 
regarding open containers outside the event area.



The point of sale location for beer and wine sales can be seen in the included overhead image. 
The p.o.s. location will be double fenced with temporary fencing with one entry/exit point. IDs 
will be checked at the entry point to verify age as well as wristbands being provided. Those 
who purchase beer or wine will be allowed to travel throughout Rotary Park as well as the 
adjacent sidewalks and streets as long as they are within the designated event area.



Bike racks will be provided on 6th street to encourage alternatives to automobile 
transportation. Additionally, handicap parking will be provided in the small railed parking lot 
adjacent to City Hall.



The following pages contain the application for a special event and have been prepared for 
your review as well as that of council. 


2


“ Normally, this would be 
the type of event that I 
would leave Stoughton 
to find someplace else 
-like one of the East 
Side festivals in 
Madison. This time 
around, I got to stay in 
Stoughton and hear 
similar music, hang out 
in a cool park, eat fun 
food, drink good beer, 
and enjoy being 
outside.” 
- Survey Respondent 







EVENT INFORMATION 


Name: Catfish River Music Festival 
Charitable: Yes - proceeds to benefit the Stoughton Opera House 
Event type: Folk Music Festival 
Dates: 7/2/22 - 7/4/22 
Expected Attendance: 500-1500 
Alcohol Sales: Yes - Stoughton Opera House Friends Association 
Food Sales: Yes 
Amplification: Yes 
Dumpster: Yes 
Electric Used: Yes - at gazebo 
Digging: Yes - fence stakes 
Parking: Parking is on-street, city lots, and special event parking 
Security: Security will be provided by event staff, volunteer staff, 
paid security staff experienced in performance venues, as well as 
additional Stoughton PD officers already assigned to the general 
area due to other activities (the fair). There will also be overnight 
security of the event area. 


Medical: A first aid station will be set-up and supervised 
throughout the event. Additionally, the EMS, PD, and Fire staff are 
within a close proximity. 


Accessibility: This is a handicap accessible event. 


Site-map: See included image 


3







Schedule: 
Friday July 1st: 
Noon-8pm - set-up (fencing, tents, tables, trash barrels, portapots, etc.) 


Saturday July 2nd: 
11am - additional set-up (barricades, beer p.o.s., food carts, vendors, etc) 
12pm - event area opens 
12pm-9:00pm - music in the gazebo 
10:00pm - outdoor area shut-down 


Sunday July 3rd: 
9am-12pm - Set-up event area 
12pm-9:00pm - music in the gazebo 
10:00pm - outdoor area shut-down 


Monday July 4th: 
9am-12pm - Set-up event area 
12pm-9pm - music in the gazebo 
9pm-11pm - Clean-up event area 


Tuesday July 5th: 
Complete event clean-up 


ADDITIONAL EVENT ORGANIZER CONTACT INFORMATION 


Stoughton Opera House with Stoughton Opera House Friends Association 


381 E. Main St. 


Bill Brehm, Director SOH, Board Member SOHFA 
608-347-8441 
bbrehm@ci.stoughton.wi.us 


4



mailto:bbrehm@ci.stoughton.wi.us





STREET CLOSING REQUEST 


Location: _____________________________ _ 


Date: 


Time: 


Reason: 


Requested By: ___________________________ _ 


As an affected neighbor, my signature below acknowledges mu understanding and agreement 
of this request (use second sheet if needed). 


Name 


For Use By City Staff 


Address 


Signatures 
Detour Route 
Insurance Documents 


Approved ______________ _ 
Candee J. Christen - City Clerk 


Signature 


Approved ___________ _ 
Brett Hebert - Director of Public Works 


Jefferson Street (5th-7th) and 6th Street (South Street to King Electric Alley)


July 2, 3, 4


9am July 2nd - 11pm July 4th


Catfish River Music Festival


Stoughton Opera House


PENDING







6







FEE:  $30.00


Name Address Home Telephone # Work Telephone #


Name Address Telephone #


Type of event Name of Event


  Outdoor     Indoor Parade     


Date and time Location


From


To
Will there be any activity taking place that involves music, amplifiers, loudspeakers, etc?


  Yes (attach additional sheet with description and times of activities)    No


License applying for:  $10.00 individually or for both


 Temporary Class "B" beer Temporary Class "B" wine


Persons proposed to sell fermented malt beverages and/or wine (attach additional sheet if necessary)
Name Address Prior relevant experience(s)


ATTACH: A sketch showing the layout for handling fermented malt beverages and/or wine.
                 A copy of the application or license of each person(s) who will be holding the beverage operator's license 
                     who requires the supervision of the sale of fermented malt beverages and/or wine.
                 A list of adjacent property owners and a copy of the form used to notify them of the event. (outdoor event only)  


I, ___________________________________________, agree to promptly pay the City for the City's 
                                         (applicant)


charges incurred either in regulating this license or remedying any unsatisfactory post-event maintenance 
by the above named person or organization as required.


Signature Date


Office Use:     Date Paid ____________     Amount Paid ____________     Receipt Number ____________


II.  ORGANIZATION


III.  EVENT


CITY OF STOUGHTON


SPECIAL EVENT LICENSE
APPLICATION


I.  APPLICANT


S:\City Clerk\LICENSING\Forms\Special Event Permit Form


5/18/2022


There are several licensed Opera House staff as well as SOHFA board members who will be selling. There are also 
other volunteers licensed in Stoughton who will be selling. Additional temp applications for individuals are pending.


William Brehm LicensedOpera House Staff


Opera House Staff Licensed


Julie McDougall Opera House Staff Licensed


(Opera House Lounge)


(Opera House Lounge)


(Opera House Lounge)


Erin Flynn















  
 Page 1 


SPECIAL EVENTS IN PARKS  
City of Stoughton Parks and Recreation 
 


Event Information 
 
Name of Event________________________________ Park ____________________________ 
 
Charitable Event? �No �Yes, Proceeds donated to__________________________________ 
Event Category �Run/Walk �Athletic Tournament �Concert �Festival �Other ___________________ 
Date of Event ____________________ 
Rain Date _______________________ 
Expected Attendance ________________ 
Alcohol Sales �No �Yes 
Food/Beverage Sales �No �Yes    
Amplification �No �Yes 
Dumpster Needed? �No �Yes 
Electric/Water Usage �No �Yes 
Shelter Needed? �No �Yes 
Digging Needed? (fence stakes, tents etc.) �No �Yes 
 
Portable Restrooms Required ___________  
Number of ADA Portable Restrooms Required (Min of 1 or 10%, whatever is greater) _____________ 
 
Mandt Park Only 


Mandt Center Needed? �No �Yes 
Mandt Center Restrooms Needed? �No �Yes 
Grandstand Needed? �No �Yes 


 
Racetrack Park Only 
 Concession Stand Needed?  �No �Yes     
 Admission or parking fees are not allowed at Racetrack Park 
 
Time of Event 
Set-up ___________ Event Starts ___________ Event Ends _________ Take-down _________ 
Does this require time in the park the day before your event? �No �Yes 
 


Event Organizer Information 
 
Name of Group ___________________________Group Contact Name___________________________ 
 
Address __________________________ City/State/Zip _______________________________________ 
 
Phone #1 _________________ Phone #2 ________________  
 
E-mail _____________________________________ 
 
Is Host Organization a 501(c)-3? �No �Yes, #ES - ________________________________ 


Version 
1-28-2020 


Catfish River Music Festival Rotary


Stoughton Opera House Friends Association (S.O.H.F.A.)


July 2, 3, 4
N/A


500-1500


We are arranging.


At Gazebo.


Gazebo


Stakes for fencing


Yes. We are arranging.
1 plus park bathroom


Noon - July 1 Noon - July 2 10pm - July 4 9pm-11pm July 4
10am - 4pm July 5


Stoughton Opera House Bill Brehm


381 E. Main St. Stoughton, WI 53589


608-347-8441


bbrehm@ci.stoughton.wi.us


July 2, 3,







  
 Page 2 


 
 
Special Event Fees 
 
      Sanctioned  Non Profit  For Profit  
      Organization   
Event Fee      $150   $250   $400  
Cleanup Dep. - (Refundable   $500   $750   $1000 
Labor Charge/per hour     $50 per hour   same   same 
Damage or loss of property    Fees to be calculated same   same 
    
*Sanctioned organizations must meet the qualifications in the Stoughton Athletic Field Policy and have a 
signed agreement form on file for the current year.   
 
Permit Fees        
Temporary Class “B” Picnic Beer/Wine License $10    $10  $10  
Beer Selling Charge    No Charge  $200  $400  


  
Facility Fees       
Grandstand or Grounds (Jr. Fair Exempt) No Charge  $400+10%gate $550+10%gate 
Ball Field Lights     $25/hour  same  same 
Scoreboard Controller    $25/day  same  same 
Portable Scoreboard    $25/day  same  same 
Electric Charges    Use + $50 Meter Fee same  same 
Water Charges     Use + $50 Meter Fee same  same  
 
Supply Fees 
Diamond Dry     City cost. Please contact for current price.  
Diamond Chalk     City cost. Please contact for current price. 
Toilet Paper     City cost. Please contact for current price. 
Trash Bags     City cost. Please contact for current price. 
 
 
Event Fee (per day):        $_______   
 
Dumpster Fee (Event organizer fills dumpster)    $_______  
 
Beer Selling Charge       $_______   
 
Grandstand or Grounds (Jr. Fair Exempt)    $_______  
 
Ball Field Lights (Per diamond per hour)     $_______  
 
Scoreboard Controllers (Racetrack Park diamonds #1 and #2 only) $_______ 
 
Portable Scoreboard       $_______ 
 
Electric Charges       $_______    
 
Water Charges        $_______  
 
Supply Charges        $_______ 
 


July 2,







  
 Page 3 


Total         $_______   


      
Cancellation of any event, for any reason, shall result in charges for actual services, labor and 
materials provided as well as 20% of the event fee. 


GENERAL INFORMATION  
 
 
All Special Events held in Stoughton Parks require the approval of the Stoughton Parks and 
Recreation Department.  Special Events are defined as events that include selling alcohol, vending, 
a run/walk component, fireworks, and/or the attendance is expected to exceed 200 people.  Please 
include a one page description of the event with this application.  The packet and description will be 
reviewed by the Stoughton Parks and Recreation Director and any applicable City committees.  We 
recommend submitting your application a minimum of 45-60 days in advance to assure time for 
review and approval of your event. Also, keep in mind that you must have approval to use the park 
before you can begin marketing your event.  
 


Park Hours  
All Stoughton Parks close at 10 p.m. The park hours are established and regulated in accordance 
with the City of Stoughton Code of Ordinances. What this means for your special event is that all of 
the clean up of the event must be completed by 10 p.m.  
 
Requests for extended hours will require administrative review and must be submitted no later than 
30 days prior to the reservation date. 
 
Parking, Security, Medical Needs, and Accessibility   
As an Event Organizer, you are required to provide a safe and secure environment for your event. 
This is accomplished through sound planning. We require all special events to have a plan, which 
covers parking, security, medical needs and handicapped accessibility.  The plan description should 
include, but is not limited to the hiring of private security companies and licensed professional 
emergency medical services, crowd control, venue safety, communication plan in case of an 
emergency, site and route descriptions, etc. The plan may be subject to review by City of Stoughton 
Police and Fire Departments who may make additional recommendations.   
 
As the event organizer, you are responsible for informing all participants, volunteers, attendees, and 
vendors of the parking and other regulations.  Parking at events will not impede access to facilities 
for emergencies.  
 
Remember to structure activities to ensure that they are barrier-free and offer equal opportunities 
for accessibility by persons who are disabled.  When using the grandstand or other facilities, 
remember to keep aisles and exits open and observe capacity limits. 
 


Event Set-up and Takedown  
As the Event Organizer it is your responsibility to make proper arrangements for set-up and clean 
up of your event. This includes making proper reservations of the park and park shelter, and 
sufficient event staff and volunteers to set up, clean up and safeguard the park and the park 
property during your event.  
 


July 2, 3, 4







  
 Page 4 


For events at Racetrack Park, the Event Organizer is required to meet with City Staff for a pre-event 
and post-event inspection of the park and its facilities prior to setting up and after take-down. The 
Event Organizer is responsible for trash removal. Dumpsters are available on request. Some events 
will be required to pay a damage deposit.  It is also your responsibility as the Event Organizer to 
reserve the appropriate park shelter. Submission of this Special Events packet or holding the event 
during the previous year does not guarantee your event the use of the park.  
 
Special Event Permits for Alcohol Use 
The Event Organizer is responsible for obtaining all permits that the City of Stoughton requires for 
special events containing the use of alcohol requiring a a temporary Class “B” retailer’s license. See 
pages 8-15 for more information. Completed applications should be filed with the City Clerk. 


 
Other City/County/State Requirements 
As the Event Organizer, it is your responsibility to contact the following departments or sections 
concerning specific requirements of your event. Not all of these will be pertinent to your event. 


o Diggers Hotline (800-242-8511) must be contacted, whenever erecting a tent or structure on 
parkland involves any excavation. 


o Dane County Public Health for temporary restaurant guidelines and inspection requirements 
if serving food. (242-6511) 


 


Certificate of Insurance 
Please note that the City of Stoughton requires a “Certificate of Insurance” from you or your parent 
organization’s insurance company. The Event Organizer shall submit a general liability insurance policy 
certificate in the amount of $1,000,000 naming the City of Stoughton as an additional insured party. The City 
of Stoughton Recreation Department must receive this certificate 30 days prior to the event date.  
 


Parking Plan 
As an event organizer, it is important that you plan for safe arrival, departure and parking of the event 
attendees, participants and vendors. The Parks staff does monitor and ticket illegally parked vehicles at the 
events. As the event organizer, you are responsible for informing all participants, volunteers, attendees, and 
vendors of the parking regulations. If your parking plan includes using neighborhood streets or neighboring 
businesses, churches, etc, you will need to include the approval of such agreements in this parking plan. See 
the Parks and Recreation Department for Mandt Park parking plan. 
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Security and Medical Plan 
As an event organizer, you are required to provide a safe and secure environment for your event. This is 
accomplished through sound planning. If your event will have over 200 attendees, you must submit a security 
and medical plan for your event. This description should include, but is not limited to the hiring of private 
security companies and licensed professional emergency medical services, crowd control, venue safety, 
communication plan in case of an emergency, etc.  
__________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________ 
 


Security will be provided by event staff, volunteer staff, paid security staff experienced in performance venues,
as well as additional Stoughton PD officers already assigned to the general area due to other activities.


There is a street closing permit pending for artist and production parking. Attendee parking will be on street and in public parking lots.


A first aid station will be set-up and supervised throughout the event.







  
 Page 5 


Site & Route Plan 
To ensure proper review of your event, please attach a site and route plan (if applicable).   
 
Site and route plans should include, but are not limited to, the following information: location of tents, stages, 
fencing, vendors, portable toilets, beer gardens, dumpsters, placement of vehicles, exit location for outdoor 
events that are fenced, clear signage, accessible paths for wheelchairs as well as ample disabled parking and 
any other related event components not listed above. 
 
Your site plan will also include the areas within the requested park you will need for the event: including the 
parking lot, shelter, band shell, grandstand and any other specific park features. 
 
If your event includes a run/walk component you will need to contact the Stoughton Police Department for 
route approval.  
 


Electrical Usage 
Any event needing electrical will meet with the Parks Maintenance Supervisor (873-6746) to go over the 
needs and capabilities of the park. This should be done before signing this agreement. 


 
Portable Restrooms 
Many of City parks have permanent restroom facilities. However, they are not designed for special event use. 
The City of Stoughton requires one portable toilets for every 100 people beyond what the permanent facility is 
designed for. This figure is based upon the maximum number of attendees at your event during peak time. 
For example, Racetrack Park is designed for 400 people at one time. If your event has 500 people at peak 
times, then you will be required to provide one portable restroom. For parks besides Racetrack Park, please 
contact us for the load capacity of the permanent restroom.   
 
We are requiring a minimum of 10 percent (10%) of portable toilets, but never less than one (1) unit must be 
accessible. Further, the ADA Standards require when clusters of portable units are provided at various 
locations around the event site, at least one unit in each cluster must be accessible. Accessible units should 
be located on an accessible route and equipped with all the accessible elements such as maneuvering space, 
grab bars, toilets paper dispensers within reach, etc. In addition, when all units are not accessible, the 
International Symbol of Accessibility must be posted on the units that are.  
 
Peak Event Attendance ____________ - 400 (Racetrack Park Load Capacity) = _________________ / 100 = 
____________ (Number of Required Portable Restrooms) 
 
10% X Number of Required Portable = _______________ (ADA Restrooms Required) 
 
 
______________ ADA Restrooms (Min. of One) 
______________ Total Restrooms Required 


 
 
Calendar of Events  
The Stoughton Chamber of Commerce maintains a calendar of upcoming special events in the City of 
Stoughton at www.stoughtonwi.com. Check for competing activities before choosing your date.  If approved, 
your event will be added to the internet calendar if all of the permits and applications are approved. If this 
section is not filled out, we will assume you do not want to be included on the calendars. 
 
Official Name of Event ______________________________________________________________ 
Park Location ______________________________________________________________________ 
Public contact phone ______________________ Website ____________________________________ 
Admission Cost ___________________________________________________________________ 


We are planning on 6 portable toilets plus 1 ADA portable plus the onsite bathroom in Rotary Park.


Catfish River Music Festival
Rotary Park and other designated festival spaces


608-877-4400 catfishrivermusicfest.com
FREE



http://www.stoughtonwi.com/





  
 Page 6 


Date of event ___________________________ Beginning/End time of event __________________ 
Two sentence description of event (for internet calendar) 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 


Mandt Community Center Usage 
The Mandt Community Center is a privately owned arena that sits within the borders of Mandt Park. The 
facility is available for rental or restroom usage by contacting the Mandt Community Manager at 873-7528. 
 
 


Equipment Rental 
To assist with your special event, the Stoughton Recreation Department rents some equipment for use by the 
Event Organization. The location of this equipment must be noted on the site and route plan you have 
attached to this application. The Event Organizer must have the ability to pick up and return all equipment.  
 
Rented from Stoughton Junior Fair Board, but picked up by Event Organizer 
 
Trash Barrels = $5 per barrel per day 
Snow Fencing & Stakes = $10 per roll/w 4 fence stakes per day 
Stage = $500 per day 
Public address system = $500 plus deposit for microphone  
 
Rented from Stoughton Parks & Recreation 
 
Electrical pods = $50 fee for each ($1000 deposit) 
Scoreboard controllers (Racetrack Park Diamonds #1 & #2) = $25 fee for each ($1000 deposit) 
Portable scoreboard = $25 fee for each 
 
Rented from Private Vendors 
 
Portable toilets (Possible Vendors: Stoughton Lumber 873-4141, Bucky’s Portable Restrooms 271-1291  
 


Supplies 
The City will provide everything needed for a regular day at the park. Any additional supplies such 
as extra toilet paper, diamond dry, etc are the responsibility of the event organizer. We can provide 
additional supplies at our cost and you will be billed after your event. Please let us know if there are 
any supplies needed prior to your event beginning and the parks staff can arrange for the park to be 
supplied sufficiently.  


 
 
 
 
 


July 2,July , , 3, 4 noon-9pm each day







  
 Page 7 


Application Signature 
The person/group named in this application will be responsible for the conduct of the group and for 
the condition of the reserved park area. This permit is subject to all Municipal Ordinances as 
defined by the City of Stoughton. The applicant agrees that during the use of the park facility, the 
sponsoring organization will not exclude anyone from participation in, deny anyone the benefits of, 
or otherwise subject anyone to discrimination because of the person’s race, color, creed, national 
origin or handicap. 
 
The applicant for her/himself, and for other persons, organizations, firms and corporation, if any 
listed in this application, does hereby contract to agree that he/she (and they) will jointly and 
severally indemnify and hold the City of Stoughton harmless against liability for any and all claims 
for damages to property, injury to or death of person or persons arising out of or resulting from the 
negligence of the applicant. 
 
Permit holders shall submit a general liability insurance policy certificate in the amount of 
$1,000,000 naming the City of Stoughton as an additional insured party. 
 
The applicant has read the Special Events Explanation packet. The applicant has completed all of 
the appropriate permit applications for this event. 
 
 
________________________________________________    _________________ 
Applicant Signature        Date 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 


SPECIAL EVENT LICENSE 
FOR AN INDOOR OR OUTDOOR EVENT 


 


5/18/2022





		06 -R-123-2022 Approving a Temp Class B for Stoughton Opera House Friends Association for Catfish River

		06a Catfish River Application Packet 2022

		2022 Catfish River Music Festival

		Application & Permit Packet

		SPECIAL_EVENTS_Parks_2021 CATFISH.pdf

		SPECIAL EVENTS IN PARKS

		City of Stoughton Parks and Recreation

		Event Information

		Name of Event________________________________ Park ____________________________

		Charitable Event? No Yes, Proceeds donated to__________________________________

		Event Category Run/Walk Athletic Tournament Concert Festival Other ___________________

		Date of Event ____________________

		Rain Date _______________________

		Expected Attendance ________________

		Concession Stand Needed?  No Yes

		Admission or parking fees are not allowed at Racetrack Park

		Time of Event

		Set-up ___________ Event Starts ___________ Event Ends _________ Take-down _________

		Event Organizer Information

		Name of Group ___________________________Group Contact Name___________________________

		Address __________________________ City/State/Zip _______________________________________

		Phone #1 _________________ Phone #2 ________________

		E-mail _____________________________________

		Is Host Organization a 501(c)-3? No Yes, #ES - ________________________________

		Water Charges        $_______

		Supply Charges        $_______

		Total         $_______

		GENERAL INFORMATION

		Park Hours

		Parking, Security, Medical Needs, and Accessibility

		Event Set-up and Takedown

		Special Event Permits for Alcohol Use

		Other City/County/State Requirements

		Certificate of Insurance

		Parking Plan

		Security and Medical Plan

		Site & Route Plan

		To ensure proper review of your event, please attach a site and route plan (if applicable).

		Electrical Usage

		Any event needing electrical will meet with the Parks Maintenance Supervisor (873-6746) to go over the needs and capabilities of the park. This should be done before signing this agreement.

		Portable Restrooms

		Many of City parks have permanent restroom facilities. However, they are not designed for special event use. The City of Stoughton requires one portable toilets for every 100 people beyond what the permanent facility is designed for. This figure is ba...

		We are requiring a minimum of 10 percent (10%) of portable toilets, but never less than one (1) unit must be accessible. Further, the ADA Standards require when clusters of portable units are provided at various locations around the event site, at lea...

		Peak Event Attendance ____________ - 400 (Racetrack Park Load Capacity) = _________________ / 100 = ____________ (Number of Required Portable Restrooms)

		10% X Number of Required Portable = _______________ (ADA Restrooms Required)

		______________ ADA Restrooms (Min. of One)

		______________ Total Restrooms Required

		Calendar of Events

		Equipment Rental

		Rented from Stoughton Junior Fair Board, but picked up by Event Organizer

		Rented from Private Vendors

		Supplies

		The City will provide everything needed for a regular day at the park. Any additional supplies such as extra toilet paper, diamond dry, etc are the responsibility of the event organizer. We can provide additional supplies at our cost and you will be b...

		Application Signature














CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. FORREST STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Approval of Riverwalk Change Order No. 1 


Committee Action: None (Time Sensitive)  
 
Fiscal Impact: $20,795.19   
 
File Number: 


 
R-124-2022 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
June 14, 2022 


 
 


WHEREAS, the design for the river walk included alignment of the current deflector and Node 
C, and was connected utilizing stone wall terracing, and 
 
WHEREAS, engineers from REP were on-site in May for the current deflector construction and 
observed that accessibility to the current deflector would be enhanced by utilizing stairs 
constructed of cut stone, and 
 
WHEREAS, the current deflector’s purpose is to allow people to access and interact with the 
river. They are used as fishing areas and river viewing, and 
 
WHEREAS, the cost estimate for the change order is $20,795.19 and the cost to the City will be 
less due to the reduction in quantities of riverbank revetment and stone wall terracing needed, and 
 
WHEREAS, there was $131,000 in contingency for the project that could pay for the change 
order, and 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Common Council of the City of Stoughton hereby 
approves Riverwalk Change Order No. 1 at a cost of $20,795.19 and to use project contingency to 
fund the change order.  
 
 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       
 
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
  
 
            
Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 


 
Council Action:           Override  Vote       







 


 


 


From: Dan Glynn, Director of Parks & Recreation  


To: Finance Committee, City Council 


Subject: Yahara Riverwalk Change Order No. 1  


Date: June 9, 2022 


 


The design for the riverwalk included alignment of the current deflector and Node C, and was connected 
utilizing stone wall terracing.  The current deflector construction occurred in late May which required a 
site visit by Gary and Mason Lacy from REP. While on-site, Gary Lacy made an observation that the 
riverwalk and current deflector would be enhanced if there were stairs constructed out of cut stones 
leading to it. This would provide increased accessibility for people with mobility issues.  


The current deflector’s purpose is to allow people to access and interact with the river. They are popular 
river viewing areas and fishing spots in other communities.  


A request was given to the contractor for a cost estimate for the change. The cost for the change order 
is $20,795.19. There will also be a credit given due to less stone wall and river rock revetment. The 
engineer estimates that the credit will be approximately $3,700 based on quantities, but the credit will 
be based on actual quantities not used.  


Please note that the plan drawing for the node and deflector shows a staircase the entire width of the 
node. It was later determined to have the staircase be 10 feet wide and centered on the node. 


 


    







CONTRACT TIME AFFECT:
NOT CHANGED
INCREASED BY: DAYS


CHANGE ORDER SUMMARY


17,773.67$  


No. 01
Yahara Riverwalk and Pedestrian Bridge


City of Stoughton


Place 6" thick step natural stone stairway down to the Current Deflector from Node C approximately 10'width as shown on Mason 
Lacy's Drawing.  The natural stone wall at node C would be reduced by 60 linear wall ft, which would result in a savings of $3,486.00 
for that item. At final payment, Item #20 Natural Stone Retaining Wall - Node C should be payed at 86%, if this change order is 
accepted. 


DESCRIPTION OF CHANGES:


PROJECT NO.:
OWNER:
PROJECT: DATE:


CHANGE ORDER NO.:
6/2/2022


CONTRACTOR DIRECT COST:
MATERIAL:   TOTAL FROM MATERIAL WORKSHEET
LABOR:   TOTAL FROM LABOR WORKSHEET
EQUIPMENT:   TOTAL FROM EQUIPMENT WORKSHEET
OTHER:   TOTAL FROM ADDITIONAL ATTACHED WORKSHEETS


7,346.76$  
5,359.43$  
5,067.48$  


-$  
CONTRACTOR SUBTOTAL:   TOTAL MATERIAL, LABOR, EQUIPMENT & OTHER


CONTRACTOR MARKUP: CONTRACTOR SUBTOTAL x 17% 3,021.52$  


SUBCONTRACTOR SUBTOTAL COST:   TOTAL OF ALL SUBCONTRACTORS -$  


-$  
-$  


SUBCONTRACTOR COST:
TOTAL COSTSUBCONTRACTOR NAME  ATTACHED BREAKDOWN AS NECESSARY


-$  


TOTAL SUBCONTRACTOR COST:   SUBCONTRACTOR SUBTOTAL + MARKUP
CHANGE ORDER SUBTOTAL:   TOTAL CONTRACTOR COST + TOTAL SUBCONTRACTOR COST


TOTAL CONTRACTOR COST:   CONTRACTOR SUBTOTAL + MARKUP 20,795.19$  


20,795.19$  
-$  


CONTRACTOR MARKUP: SUBCONTRACTOR SUBTOTAL x 15% -$  


-$  


-$  Performance and Payment Bond Markup:   CHANGE ORDER SUBTOTAL x 0%
CHANGE ORDER TOTAL:   CHANGE ORDER SUBTOTAL + BOND MARKUP 20,795.19$  







DECREASED BY: DAYS







SS


SS
SS


SS
SS


SS
SS


SS
SS


SS
SS


SS
SS


SS


19+00


20+00


EDGE OF CONCRETE
STA: 19+37.4/26.4'RTS
EL. 838.50


EDGE OF CONCRETE
STA: 19+49.6/5.0'RTS
EL. 839.41


EDGE OF CONCRETE
STA: 19+34.7/18.6'RTS
EL. 838.62


EDGE OF CONCRETE
STA: 19+17.3/13.8'RT


.
T


EL. 838.70


EDGE OF CONCRETE
STA: 19+15.8/18.6'RT


.
T


EL. 838.62


EDGE OF CONCRETE
STA: 19+01.0/4.9'RT


.
T


EL. 839.41


EDGE OF CONCRETE
STA: 18+94.2/4.9'RT


.
T


EL. 839.38


EDGE OF CONCRETE
STA: 19+56.1/5.0'RTS
EL. 839.37


EDGE OF CONCRETE
STA: 19+13.2/26.5'RT


.
T


EL. 838.50


EDGE OF CONCRETE
STA: 19+33.2/13.8'RTS
EL. 838.70


EDGE OF CONCRETE
STA: 19+31.8/8.9'RTS
EL. 838.77


-4.14%


-1
.5


0%


-1
.5


0%
-4.16%


EDGE OF CONCRETE
STA: 19+63.9/30.3'LT


.
T


EL. 840.00


EDGE OF CONCRETE
STA: 19+69.4/12.9'LT


.
T


EL. 839.97


EDGE OF CONCRETE
STA: 20+12.3/33.4'LT


.
T


EL. 839.46


EDGE OF CONCRETE
STA: 20+10.1/15.5'LT


.
T


EL. 839.46


EDGE OF CONCRETE
STA: 20+16.5/9.1'LT


.
T


EL. 839.29


EDGE OF CONCRETE
STA: 20+03.7/11.6'LT


.
T


EL. 839.39


EDGE OF CONCRETE
STA: 19+90.8/9.0'LT


.
T


EL. 839.41


EDGE OF CONCRETE
STA: 19+92.1/5.1'LT


.
T


EL. 839.35
EDGE OF CONCRETE


STA: 20+03.6/5.1'LT
.


T
EL. 839.28


EDGE OF CONCRETE
STA: 20+15.3/5.0'LT


.
T


EL. 839.23


FACE OF NATURAL WALL
STA: 18+94.8/16.2'RT


TOP OF NATURAL WALL
EL. 837.50


TOP OF NATURAL WALL
EL. 838.50


TOP OF NATURAL WALL
EL. 836.31


-1.50%


-1.50%


-1
.5


0%


-1
.5


0%


EDGE OF CONCRETE
STA: 19+25.3/28.5'RTS
EL. 838.50


SHARED-USE PATH
ALIGNMENT


10' CONCRETE
SHARED-USE PATH (TYP.)


SAWED TRANSVERSE
CONTROL JOINT (TYP.)


18-IN CONCRETE
RIBBON CURB (TYP.)


1


2


EDGE OF CONCRETE
STA: 19+18.5/8.9'RT


.
T


EL. 838.77


18'X36' CONCRETE PAD
6-IN THICK (ALTERNATE BID 4)


835835


836


836


837


838


839


837


838


839


FACE OF NATURAL WALL
STA: 18+89.5/14.1'RT


FACE OF NATURAL WALL
STA: 18+82.2/14.8'RT


FACE OF NATURAL WALL
STA: 19+55.2/15.7'RT


FACE OF NATURAL WALL
STA: 19+60.0/13.8'RT


FACE OF NATURAL WALL
STA: 19+67.3/14.8'RT


FACE OF NATURAL WALL
STA: 19+25.4/33.5'RT


HARDSCAPING LEGEND


ASPHALT PAVEMENT


STANDARD CONCRETE SIDEWALK


COLORED CONCRETE SIDEWALK


COLORED CONCRETE SIDEWALK
WITH SAWED JOINTING PATTERN


DECORATIVE AGGREGATE


RIVER ROCK REVETMENT


KEY NOTES


1 LIGHT POLE ASSEMBLY. SEE ELECTRICAL
AND LIGHTING PLAN AND DETAILS.


2 SEE LANDSCAPING PLAN FOR
RESTORATION AND PLANTING DETAILS.


3 SEE SHEET 9 FOR STORM SEWER
IMPROVEMENTS.


P
A


T
H


 N
O


D
E


 I
N


T
E


R
S


E
C


T
IO


N
 D


E
T


A
IL


S
A


R
E


A
 E


14


A S S O C I A T E S®


SHEET


JOB NO.


PROJECT MGR.


N
O


.
R


E
V


IS
IO


N
S


D
A


T
E


:


Y
A


H
A


R
A


 R
IV


E
R


 P
E


D
E


S
T


R
IA


N
 B


R
ID


G
E


 A
N


D
 R


IV
E


R
 W


A
LK


C
IT


Y
 O


F 
S


T
O


U
G


H
T


O
N


S
T


O
U


G
H


T
O


N
, W


I


1040.129


ZACH SIMPSON


YAHARA RIVER


NODE E



REP

Polygon



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



Simpson, Zach

Rectangle



REP

Dam

7 ft



REP

Dam

7 ft



REP

Dam

7 ft



REP

Line



REP

Line



REP

Pen

~



REP

Pen

.



REP

Polygon



REP

PolyLine



REP

PolyLine



REP

PolyLine



REP

PolyLine



REP

PolyLine



REP

PolyLine



REP

Text Box

838.5



REP

Text Box

838.0



REP

Text Box

837.5



REP

Text Box

837.0



REP

Text Box

836.5



REP

Text Box

836.0



REP

Text Box

835.5



REP

Text Box

835.0



REP

PolyLine



REP

Text Box

Deflector boulders - no riprap



REP

Image



REP

Text Box

Stone stair detail



REP

Callout

Stone stairway:6" rise, 12" tread



REP

Dam

7 ft





		07 R-124-2022 Riverwalk Change Order Resolution

		07a Change Order Memo 692022

		Change Order Memo 692022

		Stoughton Change Order #1 - revised for 10' width stairway replacing natural stone walls

		Summary



		Node edits (002)








CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST ST, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to write off 2019-2021 delinquent 
personal property tax bills that have proven to be uncollectable totaling $1,348.32 


 
Committee 
Action: 


 
Finance Committee recommended 3-0 on 05/24/2022 


 
Fiscal Impact:   $1,348.32 
 
File Number: 


 
R-125-2022 


 
Date 6/14/2022 
044/26/24/02020


 


 


 
The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 
 


RECITALS: 


 WHEREAS, the listing of 2019-2021 personal property tax bills below have proven to be 
uncollectible; and, 


 WHEREAS, the amounts paid to Dane County, Stoughton Area School District, and 
Madison College have been charged back to those taxing jurisdictions and payments have been 
received from these taxing jurisdictions for the 2019-2021 tax bills in the amount of $2,321,43; 
and, 


 WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton Finance Committee met on May 24, 2022 to consider 
writing off unpaid personal property tax amounts due to the City of Stoughton and recommended 
that the amount of $1,348.32 be written off for the following businesses: 


Business    Year  Amount Reason__________ 
51 South    2020  $ 74.43 Closed/Uncollectable 
Best Practices LLC   2021     15.80 Closed/Uncollectable 
Brady Haferman, OD   2021     84.75 Closed/Uncollectable 
Cinema Café    2020   227.75 Closed/Uncollectable 
Credence Computer Service  2021     10.05 Closed/Uncollectable 
Dance Dimensions Inc  2020     14.88 Closed/Uncollectable 
Environmental Consultant  2020-21    89.13 Closed/Uncollectable 
Insty Cash    2020     26.80 Closed/Uncollectable 
Instycash & Pawn   2020-21    46.03 Closed/Uncollectable 
Mariposa Learning Center  2020     37.21 Closed/Uncollectable 
North American Fur Auction  2020-21  229.16 Closed/Uncollectable 
On Track Communication  2021     39.51 Closed/Uncollectable 
Push Fitness    2019-21  160.22 Closed/Uncollectable 
Shakers Saloon   2021     71.82 Closed/Uncollectable 
Skylark Farm LLC   2020-21  127.24 Closed/Uncollectable 
Slinde’s Enterprises Inc  2020-21    51.89 Closed/Uncollectable 







Woodward Communications  2021          5.74 Closed/Uncollectable 
Yahara Chocolate   2021         35.91 Correction/Duplicate 
Total       $1,348.32; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Common Council of the City of 
Stoughton that the proper city official(s) are hereby directed and authorized to write off the above 
delinquent personal property taxes in the amount of $1,348.32. 
 


 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       
  
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
  
                                             
Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 


 
Council Action:           Override  Vo       







CITY OF STOUGHTON 
FINANCE DEPARTMENT 


207 South Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 
 


(608) 873-6677     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 


 


 


 


 


DATE: May 24, 2022 


 


TO:  Finance Committee/Common Council 


 


FROM: Lisa Aide, Treasurer 


 


RE:  Delinquent Personal Property  


 


The attached Personal Property bills are all delinquencies from 2019-2021.  They are all out of 


business and have proven to be uncollectable.  The bills have been charged back to the other 


taxing jurisdictions (County, School District and MATC) and $2,321.43 was recouped.  The 


criteria to charge back the taxing jurisdictions is the business has to be bankrupt, out of business 


or moved out of the City limits.  I am requesting that the amount of $1,348.32, which is the cities 


portion of the 2019-2021 bills, be written off in full for the businesses that have proved to be 


closed and uncollectable. 


 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/



		08  R-125-2022 Resolution to write off 2019-2021 delinquent personal property tax bills

		08a Resolution to write off 2019-2021 delinquent personal property tax bills

		5-24-22 Finance Committee Memo.pdf





